
Lori A. Shibinctte

Commissioner

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 12. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed $100,000 to
conduct a Professional Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse in order to expand medical,
mental health and substance use disorder provider awareness with the option to renew for up to
one (1) additional year, effective upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2022.
100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

Vendor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

New Hampshire Medical
Society

Concord, NH

154145-B001 Statewide $50,000

The NH Alcohol and Other

Drug Service Providers
Association

Concord, NH

TBD Statewide $50,000

Total: $100,000

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF

DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other

Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $100,000

Total $100,000

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to conduct a Professional Awareness Campaign for Alcohol
Misuse in order to expand medical, mental health and substance use disorder provider awareness
to address the importance of alcohol misuse with clients by providing messaging and distribution
of existing materials created by the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism, as well
as other evidence-based materials, to their members.

Medical, mental health and substance misuse professionals who are members of the
vendors' associations will be directly impacted by contracted services. Alcohol use is a major
driver of mortality in the United States, contributing to approximately 88,000 deaths annually.
Excessive alcohol consumption has been steadily rising over the last decade and appears to have
Increased further during the COVID 19 pandemic based upon increased alcohol sales in New
Hampshire and observation of increased alcohol associated harm. Medical and behavioral health
providers are in a position to reduce that harm by recognizing and addressing alcohol misuse in
early stages.

Approximately 9,000 professionals will receive materials created by the National Institute
on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism, as well as other evidence-based materials from July 1, 2021
to June 30, 2022.

The vendors will increase the ability of their members to address client alcohol concerns
by providing members with materials to assess, advise, treat and refer patients who have alcohol
use disorders, thereby decreasing alcohol associated harm and improving their overall health.
The vendors will provide^their membership with existing resource materials, in both digital and/or
print formats, developed by federal, state arKl/or professional medical and/or behavioral health
organizations to support members with enhancing patient care related to alcohol use.

The vendors will create messaging from existing resource materials to encourage their
members to:

•  Identify patients' alcohol misuse;

•  Advise patients on healthier behaviors regarding alcohol use;

•  Treat patients with AUD and/or refer patients to specialty AUD treatment
services; and

•  -Follow up with patients regarding alcohol use and provide support for
recovery.

The Department will monitor contracted services through activity and expense reporting.

The Department selected the contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from 4/16/2021
through 5/7/2021. The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed and scored by
a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to one (1) additional year,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, providers may not have
access to valuable information that can benefit clients who are affect^ by alcohol use and/or
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misuse, which could lead to productivity losses, including reduced labor force partidpation and
reduced earnings of workers with alcohol use disorders.

Areas served: Statewide

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoringjlheet

Professional Awarsnsss Campaign for
Alcohol MIsuss

RFA NtRW

RFA-2022-BDAS^1-PROFE

RFA NumiMf

New Hampshire
Medical sixiety

The New HampsNr*

Mcohol and O0W Drug
Service Providers

Assodalion

Q1-Ability • SO Points 28 26 Reviewer Names

02 • Expsrienca • 40 Points 38 35
1.

Jessica Morton

03 • Knowladge • 30 Points 29 25
2. Krtsly McOonald

Total 95 66
3.

LIndy Sue Keler
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_ProfessionaI Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse (RJ^A-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

New Hampshire Medical Society

1.4 Contractor Address

7 N. State Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)224-1909

1.6 Account Number

05-92-92-920510-

33820000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$50,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
>—DseuSignad by;

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
James Potter

Executive vice President/CEO

iTTJ'^^e Agency Signature
^DocuSigiMd by:

lUifA '^®'^/6/2021

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
<atja Fox

Di rector

I.I 5 Xpproval by theN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
OeeuSto^ by:

Py: I /P\Srt 7/14/2021

1.17 Appro^'ft^fK^tjovlfnor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: - G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block t.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take afTirmative action to
prevent such discrimination. .
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months affer the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days af^er giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTIU^CTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or-substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and.against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omiafiorP^f the

3 of 4
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement. '

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
Insurance for all insurance required under this Agreernent.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer Identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
28NA and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any" Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws In connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction,thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to .explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT, A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and lake corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

j?

RFA-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-01 New Hampshire Medical Society Contractor Initials
7/6/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall expand medical, mental health and substance use
disorder provider awareness of the importance of addressing alcohol misuse
by providing messaging and distribution of existing materials created by the
National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism, as well as other evidence-
based materials, to its members, statewide.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure extensive networks are engaged In different
aspects of clinical care and infrastructures that support dissemination of
information and practice transformation. The Contractors shall:

1.2.1. Have a broad range of memberships involved in medical or behavioral
healthcare.

1.2.2. Ensure that distribution of information to members will yield continued
reach through various providers.

1.2.3. Work with memberships to enhance medical, mental health and
substance use disorder practices related to alcohol misuse to ensure
providers are aware of:

1.2.3.1. The harms of unhealthy alcohol use and its contribution to
other psychosocial challenges.

1.2.3.2. How to effectively approach topics related to alcohol use with
patients.

1.2.3.3. The value of screening, brief advice/intervention, and
pharmacological treatments, in addition to psychosocial
therapies, in addressing harmful alcohol use.

1.2.3.4. Referral sources and processes to access specialty care for
Alcohol Use Disorder (AUD).

1.3. The Contractor shall create messaging from existing resource materials to
encourage their membership to:

1.3.1. Identify patients' alcohol misuse;

1.3.2. Advise patients on healthier behaviors regarding alcohol use;

1.3.3. Treat patients with AUD and/or refer patients to specialty AUD
treatment services; and

1.3.4. Follow up with patients regarding alcohol use and provide support for
recovery.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide their membership with existing resource materials
developed by federal, state and/or professional medical and/or behavioral
health organizations to support members with enhancing patient car^^ted

RFA-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-01 New Hamoshire Medical Society Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse

EXHIBIT B

to alcohol use in digital and/or print formats. The Contractor shall ensure
materials include, but are not limited to:

1.4.1. Information for patients including:

1.4.1.1. Safe drinking guidelines.

1.4.1.2. Medical and behavioral health risks associated with alcohol

misuse.

1.4.1.3. Patient resources to change their alcohol use patterns.

1.4.2. ADD screening tools.

1.4.3. Skills to provide brief advice/intervention.

1.4.4. Best practices for treating AUD including:

1.4.4.1. Pharmacological treatments; and

1.4.4.2. Psychosocial therapies.

1.4.5. Information on how to locate, refer to and access resources including,
but not limited to:

1.4.5.1. AUD specialty treatment.

1.4.5.2. Recovery Support Services.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan in a format requested by the^
Department within 30 days of the contract effective date that identifies:

3.1.1. A member distribution list;

3.1.2. A list of federal and state resources for distribution to members; and

3.1.3. AUD message development from existing resources identified in
Subsection 1.3.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide an expense report in a format requested by the
Department 30 days after the initial payment identified in Exhibit C, Payment
Terms that identifies allowable expenses that shall be incurred during the
contract.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide a final report 30 days before the end of this
Contract in a format requested by the Department that includes:

3.3.1. The number of members in their association;

RFA-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-01 New Hampshire Medical Society Contractor Initials
7/6/2021

B-1.0 Page 2 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse

EXHIBIT B

3.3.2. The type of message, as identified in Subsection 1.3, above, and the
percentage of members who received them;

3.3.3. List of messaging resources identified in Subsection 1.4 that were
provided to members and the type of resource materials that were
provided, which includes digital and/or printed materials; and

3.3.4. An expense report for all expenses incurred in the delivery of services
identified in this contract.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with providers to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.2. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from the Contractor
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.3. The Department may identify expectations for active and regular collaboration,
including key performance objectives, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, the Contractor must collect and share data with the Department in
a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed /tmcter a

[>
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Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obtigatlons
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of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Other funds (Governor Commission).

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
upon approval of the work plan identified in Exhibit B, Section 3, Subsection
3.1 for an amount not to exceed 50% of the amount specified in Form P-37,
General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation.

4. The Contractor shall submit documentation that details allowable expenses
incurred in the previous month no later than the 15*^ day of the following month.

5. The Contractor shall submit a final invoice for an amount not to exceed up to
the remaining balance of the amount specified in Form P-37, General
Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation with the final report and supporting
documentation specified in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, no later than thirty
(30) days before the date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block
1.7. Completion Date.

5.1. Any unspent start-up payment funds will be returned to the Department
within 30 days of the the date specified in Form P-37, General
Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date.

5.2. The Department may recoup payments processed in accordance with
Section 3, in whole or in part, in the event that the Contractor does not
complete the services detailed in Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices or expense reports may be assigned an
electronic signature and emailed to dhhs.invoicesforcontractsfajdhhs.nh.gov.
or invoices may be mailed to:

Lindy Keller
Department of Health and Human Services
DBH-Bureau of Drug & Alcohol
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of Form P-37, General
Provisions.

f—
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8. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or Stale law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits

^13.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to

melissa.s.morin@dhhs.nh.aov if any of the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

hp
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13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS.

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and putslished as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlavrful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. V Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

—-08
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has designated a central-point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or .
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

^OocuSlgiMd by:

7/6/2021

Date
Title. Executive vice President/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101 -121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name;

— DoeuSleiMd by:

JftiMts Pdffir7/6/2021

piti
Executive vice President/CEO

>  OS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andf~"
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

(

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.'
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

DoeuStgMd by;

7/6/2021

Diti ^
Title:

Executive vice President/CEO
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are.prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. "13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for par^erships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

/  OocuSlqntd bjr

7/6/2021
BAjiejimewBci.

Date Name: james Potter

Pdfftr

Title:
Executive vice President/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

—DocwSignad by:

7/6/2021

Date ' Name:"^ am^^s^'^Potte r

PdKvr

Title. Executive vice President/CEO
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall rnean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
InformMion at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receivpdHay
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. jf
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH (
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by taw or for the purpose.for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busifieji
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any. security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the.Privacy, Security, and
.Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivim^HI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

1

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business jp
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or llmitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r^esotved
to permit Covered Entity to.comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor IniUals.
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Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the. Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services James G Potter

fwc

^Gafi34Ul3^ Contractor
JiUMtS Pdfftr

Signature of Authorized Representative Signafijre ofAuthorized Representative

Katja Fox James Potter

Name of Authorized Representative
Di rector

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive vice President/CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

7/6/2021 7/6/2021

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives, if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmenL and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative,- as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

—DecuSiQnMi by:

7/6/2021 fMjr

Date Name:

Executive vice President/CEO

Exhibtt J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

836166728
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants. sut)-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

James Potter

Jane Tewksbury

Jennifer Mazzei

Michael Padmore

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/110713

Exhibtt J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, " Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

DS
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or ' indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS' so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop fronh which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State pf NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and ,
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the .delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department .confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with ail applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

DS
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center sen/ices necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health,
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of-security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

DS
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

^D3
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL

SOCIETY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 16, 1791.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 69038

Certificate Number: 0005403222

o ■9

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 6th day of July A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretaiy of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . G. Kenton Allen, MD ; hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporatior^/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of New Hampshire Medical Society ,
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 30 , 2021 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That James G. Potter (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf ofNew Hampshire Medical Society to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
•date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
'thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed' above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: June 30, 2021
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: G. Kenton Allen, MD
Title: President

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

6/30/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsemont(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency. LLC
11 Concord St
Nashua NH 03064

NAMF*'^^ Debbie Rioux
P^v 603-882-2766 Twc. no): 603-886-4230

drioux(8}eatonbenjbe.com

INSURERfS) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A The Hanover Insurance Comoanies 22292

INSURED NE\WA31
New Hampshire Medical Society
7 North State Street

Concord NH 03301^018

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 429152987 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT .THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

?UBR
WVDTYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL

JtiSH POUCY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMMTOVYYVYl

POLICY EXP
IMWDIVYYYYI UMITS

INSA

UB.
COMMERCIALGENERAL UABtLUY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

OBVA683893 4/12/2021 4/12/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufTWxet

MED EXP (Any on> pef»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

I  I LOCPOLICY □PRO
JECT

GENERALAGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
tEa acdoentl

$1,000,000

$ 300,000

$ 5.000

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

ANY AUTO BOOILY INJURY (Par parson)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OVWEO
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Paracddani)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acdOani)

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

OBVA883893 4/12/2021 4/12/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000.000

AGGREGATE $1,000,000

OED RETENTION $
OTH-
ERWORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANYPROPRIETORfl»ARTNER/EXECUTlVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandat^ In NH)
11 yas. dascriba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS tialow

WHVA883897 4/12/2021 4/12/2022 PER
STATUTE

H
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $ 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Addtttonal Ramarfcs Scftadula, may ba attachad If mora apaea la raqulrad)
Additional Insured applies to General Liability when required in Written Contract. Lease or Permit per Hanover Insurance Form 391>1345(06/09)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

'

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

AC0RD2S (2016/03)
<E>1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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New Hampshire

MEDICAL SOCIETY ADVOCATING FOR PHYSICIANS b PUBLIC HEALTH SINCE 1791

Vision

The world we hope to create through our work together:

The New Hampshire Medical Society envisions a State in which personal and public health are high
priorities; all people have access to quality healthcare, and physicians experience deep satisfaction
in the practice of medicine.

Mission

Our role as an organization in creating the world we envision:

The mission of the New Hampshire Medical Society is to bring together physicians to advocate for
the well being of our patients, for our profession and for the betterment of the public health.

Values

The principles and values that we expect to guide our work together:

Altruism - We will act with unselfish regard for the welfare of others.

Integrity - We will conduct our activities in an atmosphere of openness and honesty. Members,
officers and staff will uphold the highest standards of personal ethics.

Inclusiveness - We will seek out and respect individuals with diverse perspectives and opinions to
enrich our work.

Humanism - We will embrace the art of medicine and the importance of the person in all that we do.

Science - Our work will be grounded in principles and knowledge that can be studied and
evaluated.

Respect - We will treat other individuals and professions with due consideration.

Activism - We will take action to address issues of importance to our mission.

Excellence - We will bring the highest standards and quality to our work.

7 North Siaic Sircci I Concord,-NH 03301 I COS 224 1909 ! www.iihins.org
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY

■ AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT

DECEMBERS!, 2019
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NATHAN WECHSLER <& COMPANY
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Coimdl

New Hampshire Medical Society and Affiliate
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the New Hampshire Medical
Society and Affiliate, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31,
2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, ̂ d the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Managemenfs Responsibility for the Consolidated Pinancial Statements

Management is responsible for die preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accoimting principles generally accepted m the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement
whedier due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whedier the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of die risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevzmt to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We beUeve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Page 1
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
r^pects, the financial position of New Hampshire Medical Society and Affiliate as of December 31,2019,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited New Hampshire Medical Sodet/s December 31,2018 consolidated financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in our report
dated October 17,2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of
and for the year ended December 31,2019 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated fiiutndal statements
as a whole. The consolidated supplemental schedule of fees for member services income is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in ffie audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accoimting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
finarvnal statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional

procedures in accordance with auditing stand^ds generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in aU material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

Emphasis ofMatter

As discussed in Note 12 to die financial statements, as a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus
subsequent to year end, economic uncertainties have arisen which are likely to negatively impact
operating results. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. •

G>ncord, New Hampshire ' q
June 26,2020

Page 2



DocuSIgn Envelope ID: B7080C4A-327E-45C7.8F17^024E690AFA

NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31,2019 (With Comparative Totals for 2018)

LIABXUTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts and dues payable
Accrued expenses
Contract liabilities - deferred income

Total current liabilities

COMMITMENTS (See Notes)

NET ASSETS

31^ $

14,154

85,027

- $

130,451 130,451

2019 2018

Operating

fund

The Bowler-Bartlett

Foundation

Without With

donor donor

restrictions restrictions Total Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash, including money-market funds
Accotmts receivable and other assets

Interfund receivable (payable)

$  295,004

15,849

29,039

$  - $ 53,077 $

(29,039)

348,081 $

15,849

219,091

17,131

Total current assets 339,892 24,038 363,930 236,222

INVESTMENTS _ 857,229 747,985 1,605,214 1387,401

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

Land

Building and leasehold improvements
Office equipment

43,000

533,614

172,156

- 43,000

533,614

172,156

43,000

533314

172,156

Less accumulated depredation

748,770

585,599

- 748,770

585,599

748,770

567315

163,171 . 163,171 181355

Total assets $  503,063 $  857,229 $ 772,023 $ 2,132,315 $ L804378

31,270 $ 52,498

14,154 154

85,027 2S;2B7

78,939

Without donor restrictions 153,943 - - 153,943 204,081

Board designated for tort reform 111,668 - - 111,668 101312

Board designated for building maintenance 39386 - - ■39386 35372
Board designated for database 8300 - - 8300 8300
Board designated for financial aid to members - 857329 - 857329 ■  730,745

Total net assets without
restrictions 313,997 857329 - 1,171326 1,080310

Net assets with donor restrictions 58,615 . 772,023 830,638 645,629

Total net assets 372,612 857329 772,023 2,001,864 1,725,939

Total liabilities and net assets S 503,063 $ 857329 $ 772,023 S 3132315 $ 1304378

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Page 3
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACnVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended December 31,2019 (With Comparative Totals for 2018)

2019 2018

Without

donor With donor

restrictions restrictions

Total Total

Revenues: -

Membership dues % 467,867 $ - $ $  467,867 $  492,364

Building assessment 39,930 - - 39,930 41300

Member dues for tort reform issues 13,320 - - 13,320 13,830

Tuition revenue - Leadership program - 144,000 - 144,000 81,900

Interest and dividend income 396 46,427 32,576 79,399 97,104

Fees for member services including conventions and workshops 306,344 - - 306344 289,242

Realized and unrealized gams (losses) on investments, net of fees - 80,057 75,317 155374 (204,639)

Odier income 55,732 - - 55,732 48,236

Fundraising - -
3,361 3361 2,160

Contributions and grants 36,575 - 133,862 170,437 99,250

Total revenues, gains and other support 920,164 270,484 245,116 1,435,764 960,947

Net asset released from restrictions, for satisfaction

of donor-imposed restrictions 1,385 58,722 (60,107) - -

Expenses:
Program: Member services 693,759 -

- 693,759 664,791

Program: Conventions and workshops 59,492 202,722 - 262,214 153,727

Administrative and general 203,866 - - 203,866 183,192

Total expenses 957,117 202,722 - 1,159,839 1,001,710

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (35,568) 126,484 185,009 275,925 (40,763)

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions (35,568) 126,484 - 90,916 (14,017)

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions - - 185,009 185,009 (26,746)

Increase (decrease) in net assets (35,568) 126,484 185,009 275,925 -  (40,763)

Net assets, beginning of year 349,565 730,745 1  645,629 1,725,939 1,766,702

Net assets, end ofyear $ 313,997 $ 857,229 $  1 830,638 $  2,001364 $  1,725,939

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Page 4
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended December 31,2019 (With Compararive Totals for 2018)

2019 2018

Administrative

Program and General Total Total

Member Conferences

Services and workshops

Salaries $ 336,920 $ - $  177347 $ 514,467 $ 440,218

Benefits 97,153 - 17,755 114,908 102,179

Event space and speakers -
124,857 - 124,857 79304

Payroll taxes 29381 - 5,185 34366 30,846

Travel and conference expenses 35356 - - 35356 27,954

Computer expense 13395 - - 13395 12,675

Equipment rental expense 24,069 - - 24,069 23389

Newsletter expense 15,745 - - 15,745 14,975

Postage 12,786 - - 12,786 17,788

■"Insurance 12,920 - - 12,920 15,758
Office supplies and expenses 18,124 - - 18,124 15,265
Depreciation 18,084 - - 18,084 16358
Accounting fees 16,700 - - 16,700 15300
Property taxes 14326 - - 14326 14,922
Repairs and maintenance 12336 - - 12336 9,402
Miscellaneous 4332 - - 4332 204

Utilities 5,044 - 2,175 7,219 6,930
Tort/legal expense 3,064 - - 3,064 60,269
Telephone 7394 - 844 8,438 7,179
Contributions and grants - 100 - 100 2,425
Dues and subscriptions 5,789 - - 5,789 5,935
Business enterprise tax

and odrer taxes 3,797 - - 3,797 3,235
Printing 3,204 - - 3,204 3,202
Parking 3,240 - 360 3,600 3,600
NH Physidan Leadership

Development Program - 127,683 - 127,683 69,797
MAT Waiver Training - 8,189 - 8,189 2,201
Nurse Anesthetists legislation - 1385 - 1385 -

$ 693,759 $ 262314 $  203366 $ 1,159339 $ 1,001,710

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Page 5
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFaiATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,2019 and 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVniES

Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reccndle increase (decrease) in net assets
to cash provided by operating activities:

2019

275,925 $

2018

(40,763)

Depreciation
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments
Decrease in accoimts receivable and other assets

Increase (decrease) in accounts and dues payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in deferred income

18,084

(155,374)
1,282

(21,228)
14,000

58,740

16,558

204,639

3,637

22,072

(51,278)
(41,201)

Net cash provided hy operating activities 191,429 113,664

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTlVlllES

Purchase of building improvement
Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchases of investments

40,000'
(102,439)

(19,007)
121,000

(207,278)

Net cash used in investing activities (62,439) (105,285)

Net increase in cash 128,990 8,379

Cash, beginning of year 219,091 210,712

Cash, end ofyear $  348,081 $ 219,091

See Notes to Consolidated Fijiancial Statements. Page 6



OocuSign Envelope ID: 870B0C4A-327E-45C7-8F17-84024E690AFA

NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AITILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notel. Nature of Organization =;

The purpose of the New Hampshire Medical Sodety is to promote the art and science of medidne and the
betterment of public health by keeping the public well informed on health matters.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, The John P. Bowler, M.D. Memorial Library changed its name
with ̂ e New Hampshire Secretary of State to The Bowler-Bartlett Foimdation. The New Hampshire
Attorney General's office also approved the request for expanded purpose and amendment to the library
facility purpose.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies
\

Prindples of consolidation: The Sodety presents its finandal statements in accordance with FASB
Accounting Standards Codification Topic for Consolidation (FASB ASC 810). The consolidated finandal
statements indude the New Hampshire Medical Sodety and its wholly owned subsidiary New Hampshire
Medical Sodety Insurance Services, LLC, and the Bowler-Bartlett Foimdation. All material inter-
organizational transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation. Collectively, the entities
are referred to as "the Sodety" throughout these footnotes.

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of the Sodety are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with generally accepted accounting prindples (GAAP) for exchange type transactions. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recorded at
the time the liabilities are incurred.

Comparative finandal information: The financial statements indude certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not indude suffident
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting prindples.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Sodet/s finandal statements for the
year ended December 31,2018, from which the summarized information was derived.

Estimates and assumptions: Management makes certain estimates and assumptions in preparing the
Sodety's consolidated finandal statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, the disdosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts.

Investments: The Sodety reports investments at fair value in accordance with the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification topic for accounting for certain investments held by not-for-profit organizations
(FASB ASC 95&-320).

Contributions: The Sodety recognizes contributions received and made, induding unconditional
promises to give, as revenue in the period received or made. Contributions received are reported as either
revenues without donor restrictions or revenues with donor restrictions. Contributions with donor

restrictions that are used for the purposes specified by the by the donor in the same year as the
contribution is recdved are recognized as revenues with donor restrictions and are redassified as net assets
released from restrictions in the same year. Promises to contribute that stipulate conditions to be met
before the contribution is made are not recorded imtil the conditions are met There were no conditional

promises to give for the years ended December 31,2019 or 2018.

Page 7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFRLIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Net assets: The Society reports information regarding its consolidated financial position and activities
according to two categories of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor
restrictions. Descriptions of these net asset categories are as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use at the
discretion of the Board of Directors and/or management for general operating purposes. From time to

■  time the Board of Directors designates a portion of these net assets for specific purposes which makes
them imavailable for use at management's discretion.

For example, the Board has designated a portion of net assets wifiiout donor restrictions for tort reform
initiatives, building maintenance, creation of database, and financial aid to its members in special
circumstances.

Net Assets with donor restrictions: Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is limited

by donor-imposed, time and/or purpose restrictions and also includes the accumulated appreciation
and depreciation related to donor-restricted endowment funds.

The Society reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, the net assets are
reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with donor restrictions could include a situation that assets provided be maintained
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the Society to expend the income generated by the'
assets in accordance with die provisions.of additional donor imposed stipulations or a Board approved
spending policy. The Society does not have any such restricted net assets at December 31,2019.

.  t

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Society considers aU higjily liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Society had no
cash equivalents as of December 31,2019. Temporary cash investments held in the investment portfolio are
excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred income: Deferred income results from the Society recognizing dues and program revenue in the
period in which the related program expenses are incurred. Accordingly, membership dues and program
fees received for the next year are deferred until the program expenses are incurred. Included in deferred
income are membership dues collected in advance that will be recogni^d as earned revenue in the year
relating to the dues menibership and amounted to $77^57 at December 31, 2019. Included in deferred
income are program fees received for next year of $7,170 at December 31,2019.

Fixed assets and depreciation: Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful Lives:

Years

Building and leasehold improvements 31V2 - 40
Office equipment 5-7

Page 8
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANaAL STATEMENTS

Expenditures for betterments and major renewals and replacements are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals and replacements are exper\sed when incurred. Upon retirement or disposal of property
and equipment, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective asset and
accumulated depreciation accounts, and any profit or loss is included in revenues.

Taxes: The Society is a not-for-profit organization exempt rmder Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue
Code; however, certain imrelated biisiness income is subject to federal taxation. For the year ended
December 31,2019, there was no liability for tax on unrelated business income.

The Society is required to pay the Business Enterprise Tax to the state of New Hampshire. This tax is
imposed by the state on payroll expense and interest expense incurred by the Society. The tax amounted to
$3,797 for the year ended December 31,2019.

The Society has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated die Sodet/s tax positions and concluded the Society had
maintain^ its tax-exempt status and it had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or
disclosure in the financial statements. With few exceptions, the Society is no longer subject to income tax
exaininations by the US. Federal or State tax authorities for years before 2016.

Change in accotmting principle: In May 2014, the FASB issued, Reveniie from Contracts with Customers (ASU
2014-09), which provides a five-step analysis of contracts to determine when and how revenue is recognized
and replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
The core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to reflect the transfer of
goods and services to customers in an amoimt equal to the consideration the entity receives or expects to
receive. ASU 2014-09 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,2018, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,2019. The Society adopted ASU 2014-09 with a date
of initial application of January 1,2019 using the modified-retrospective method.

The adoption of ASU 2014-09 did not have a significant impact on the Society's financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows. Based on the Society's evaluation of its contracts with customers, the timing and
amount of revenue recognized previously is consistent with how revenue is recognized under the new
standard. Contributions are specifically excluded from the scope of ASU 2014-09, therefore upon adoption.
The Society has determined the new standard did not have any impact on these revenue streams. No other
changes were required to previously reported revenues as a result of the adoption. See Note 3 for further
discussion of the effects of the adoption of ASU 2014-19 on significant accounting policies on contracts with
customers.

Recent accounting pronoimcement: In February 2016, the FASB issued. Leases, Topic 842 (ASU 2016-02),
which will be effective for the Society on July 1,2020, with early adoption permitted. Under ASU 2016-02,
at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the discounted
payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. Lessees (for capital
and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or
entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements.
The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases that expired
before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a. full retrospective transition
approach. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2016-02 on its financial statements.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. Revenue from Contracts with Members/Specialty Societies

The Sodety recogxuzes revenue from member services utilizing the foUovsnng steps:

•  Identif)ang the contract with the member or spedalty sodety
•  Identifying the performance obligation under the contract
• Deterrnining the traiisaction price
•  Allocating the transaction price to performance obligations, if necessary
•  Recognizing revenue as performance obligatlor\s are satisfied

The Sodety's revenue mainly consists of membership dues, which are nonrefundable. They are comprised of
an exchange element based on die value of benefits provided^ and a contribution element for the difference
between the total dues paid and the exchange element The Sodety recognizes the exchange portion of
membership dues over the membership period, and the contribution portion immediately. The Sodety
records special events revenue equal to the fair value of direct benefits to donors, and contribution income for
the excess received when the event takes place.

'The Sodety recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; and imconditional promise to give;
or a notification of a benefidal interest is received. Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a
measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been met

Contract balances: The Sodety does not maintain contract assets. Contract liabilities indude deferred
revenue from advanced payments received on contracts and membership dues for the next calendar year and
are presented on the consolidated statements of finandal position as "Contract liabilities - deferred revenue".

Note 4. Investments

Investments are presented in the finandal statements in the aggregate at fair value. Investments are
composed of the following at December 31,2019:

Money-market shares
Corporate bonds
Mutual funds - domestic equity securities
Mutual funds - international equity securities
Mutual funds - corporate debt securities
Mutual funds - mixed assets

Total

Market Cost

147,901 $ 147,901

4,057 4,017

537,172 471,668

275,932 246,400

269356 283,156

370.796 334.109

$  1.605.214 $ 1.487.251
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOdETY AND AEFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Total investment return amounted to ($107^5) for the year ended December 31, 2019. Investment fees of
$16,949 have been included with the realized and unrealized loss for the year ended December 31,2019.

Note 5. Collection of Dues

The Society acts as a collection agent in collecting county dues, and remits such dues to the various Neiw
Hampshire county medical sodeties.

IXtring 2010, the Society inquired of the various county medical sodeties and polled the members, if
necessary, to determine if the county sodeties wished to continue coUecting dues. Only two county sodeties
dedded to continue collecting dues.

Covmty dues collected, which have not been remitted to the two county medical sodeties, amounted to $940
at December 31, 2019. These amormts are induded in these financial statements in accoimts and dues
payable.

Note 6. Uninsured Cash Balances

The Sodety maintains its cash accounts at a commercial bank and an investment company. The Sodety's
cash accounts are insured up to $250,000, per depositor at each financial institutioiL At times during the year,
the Sodety's .amounts on deposit exceeded the federally insured limits. There were no amounts on deposit in
excess of federally insured limits at December 31,2019.

Note?. Operating Leases

The Sodety has four lease a^eements relating to office- equipment. Minimiun future payments required
imder these leases are as follows:

Year Ending December 31,
2020 $ 21,902

2021 13,668

2022 9,112

Total S 44.682

Total rental expense induded in this statement amounted to $24,069 for the year ended December 31,2019.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANQAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The Society's financial assets available within one year of the consolidated statements of financial position
date for general expenditures are as follows:

December 31^ 2019
Cash $ 348,081

Accounts receivable 6,761

Investments 1,605,214
Total financial assets available within one year 1,960,056

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to being
restricted by donors with purpose restrictions (830,638)

Less amounts imavailable without Board approval for the following:
Board designated for tort reform (111,668)
Board designated for building maintenance (39,886)
Board designated for database (8,500)
Board designated for financial aid to members (857,229)

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $ 112,135

Note 9. Retirement Plans

The Society adopted a 401 (k) "safe harbor" Retirement Plan for aU employees who meet the eligibility
requirements of the plan. The Society wiH make a 10% contribution each year to the plan. Participants are
permitted to make elective deferrals of their compensation up to the maximum statutory amount For the
year ended December 31,2019, the Society's contribution to this plan amounted to $48,020.

Note 10. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair-Value Measurements topic of the FASB Accounting Standcirds Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The duee levels of fair value hierarchy are as follows:

•  Level 1 - Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurement date. The types of assets carried at level 1 fair value generally are securities
Listed in active markets. The Society has valued their investments, listed on national
exchanges at the last sales price as of the day of valuation.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

•  Level 2 - Inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-
based valuation techniques for which all sigruficant assumptions are observable in the
market or can be corroborated by observable market data for substanti^y the full term of
ihe assets or liabilities.

•  Level 3 - Inputs are generally rmobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair
values are therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing
models, discotmted cash flow models, and similar techniques.

The inputs or methodology used for valuing investments are not necessarily an indication of the risk
associated with investing in those investments.

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at December
31,2019:

i  Level 1 Level 2

Money market
Corporate bonds
Mutual funds - domestic equity securities
Mutual funds - international equity securities
Mutual funds - corporate debt securities
Mutual funds - mixed assets

Total $ 1.453.256 $ 151.958

$  - $ 147,901

- 4,057

537,172 -

275,932 -

269,356 -

370.796 -

Note 11. Net Assets with Donor Restriction

The net assets with donor restriction are subject to purpose restrictions imposed by donors. These funds
cor\sisted of the following at December 31,2019:

The Bowler-Bartlett Foimdation - educational and scientific purposes $ 772,003
New Hampshire Medical Society - Nurse Anesihetisb legislation 58.615

$  830.638

Note 12. Suhseifuent Events

The Society has evaluated subsequent events through June 26, 2020, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued, and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. As a result of the
spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which are likely to negatively
impact operating results. Other financial impact could occur though such potential impact is unknown at
this time.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES OF FEES FOR MEMBER SERVICES INCOME

Years Ended December 31,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Continiiing medical education service fees $  126,120 $ 12335

Annual convention and workshops 96,936 78,642

Other societies service income, including mailing 59,175. 55,500

Hospital accreditation fees 20,450 ■ 21,200

Membership application fees 3,663 10395

Total fees for member services income $  30634 $ 289342

Page 14



DocuSign Envelope ID; B70B0C4A-327E-45C7-8F17-84024E690AFA

J^ew Hampshire

MEDICAL SOCIETY
ADVOCATING FOR PHYSICIANS b PUBLIC HEALTH SINCE 1791
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New Hampshire

MEDICAL SOCIETY

Brief Bio

James G. Potter

Executive Vice President/CEO

New Hampshire Medical Society

ADVOCATtNC FOR PHYSICIANS 6 PUBLIC HEALTH SINCE 1791

I ,rz.

Jim serves as the Executive Vice President/CEO of the New Hampshire Medical

Society since 2015.

Jim has previously served in senior management and advocacy positions with the

American Medical Association and national specialty organizations, including

radiology, speech pathology and physician assistants.

Jim has ben awarded the FDA Commissioner's Special Citation and the Vice

President's Hammer Award for coordinating a consensus approach on federal

quality and coverage guidelines for mammography. His advocacy work has been
recognized by the American Society of Association Executives (ASAE) with its
highest honor - The Summit Award - for advancing early detection and
intervention for children with hearing loss.

While at the AMA, he helped to establish multi-specialty initiatives, such as the

Relative-Value Update Committee (RUG) and quality measures development

under the Physician Consortium for Performance Improvement (PCPI).
V

Jim received his graduate and undergraduate degrees from the University of

Michigan. He is an avid New England Patriots fan, enjoys playing golf and hiking with
his dog, Harry. Jim lives with his wife Karen and their four children in Concord.

7 North State Street I Concord. NW 03301 i COS 224 1909 ! www.nhnis.org



DocuSign Envelope ID; B70B0C4A-327E-45C7-8F17-84024E690AFA

JAMES G. POTTER, CAE

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Medical Society, Executive Vice PresidenVCEO 2015 - Present
The Bowler-Bartlett Foundation, EVP and Treasurer

Founded in 1791 as the fourth oldest state medical society in the United States, serves as strategic
and operational leader with oversight of external relations in advocacy, commuiucations and
corporate relations. Also leads the Foundation as the Medical Society's charitable, educational
and scientific 501(c)3 organization, whose mission is to advance the practice of medicine,
enhance the quality of medical care, and better the health of New Hampshire citizens, as well as
preserve and promote the history of medicine in the Granite State.

American Chiropractic Association Arlington, VA 2013 - 2015
Executive Vice President

Responsible for the overall health of a $5 million professional association, serving as strategic and
operational leader with oversight of external relations in advocacy, communications, corporate
relations, as well as the internal operations including membership, marketing, finance, human
resources and information technology systems.

American Academy of Physician Assistants Alexandria, VA 2010 - 2013
Senior Vice President, Advocacy & Operations (3 years)
Provide oversight for health policy, grassroots and political advocacy activities, including federal
and state legislative and regulatory advocacy programs, and practice management services, as
well as operations, information technology, and constituent relations teams.

Interim Chief Executive Officer (9 months)
Responsible for managing the strategic plan and operations of a $22 million national professional
association and its $3 million foundation with 60 staff, facilitating its leadership and Board of
Directors, as well as leading its advocacy and corporate outreach efforts.

American Speech-Language Hearing Association (ASHA) Rockville, MD 1999 - 2009
Director, Government Relations & Public Policy Washington, IX!

Provided overall coordination and vision of the Association's government relations division,'
including policy formulation, strategy, communications development, and advocacy
implementation for federal and state legislative and regulatory activities, state affiliate relations, as
well as consumer, grassroots and political advocacy programs. Established first satellite office for
association on Capitol Hill, actively lobbied on association issues before Congress and state
legislatures, as well as federal and state agencies. Facilitated five association committees, working
daily with Association's President and Board of Directors to ensure that effective strategies are
identified and implemented to achieve political and policy objectives.
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American College of Radiology Reston, VA 1995 -1999
Director, Federal & State Programs & Associate Director, Government Relations
Coordinated federal and state government relations activities. Liaison to external physician
and health care advocacy organizations. Managed the government relations staff, operations
and budgets. Principal staff to AMA Section Council on Radiology, three ACR Commissions,
and Digital Imaging Communications in Medicine (DICOM) standards.

American Medical Association Chicago, Illinois 1989 -1995
Field Representative, Medical Society Relations
Primary liaison to over 30 national medical specialty organizations, providing consultation and
strategic planning support in policy, advocacy and product development

•  Assisted in coordination of consensus-building activities with specialty society leadership,
including the establishment of Relative Update Committee (that updates the professional and
expense values of the Medicare physician fee schedule) and quality measures partnership.

ADDITIONAL RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

•  Legislative Assistant, Member of Congress (Michigan), United State House of Representatives

•  Policy Analyst, American Healthcare Executives Association

•  Labor Relations Supervisor, Ryder Systems Auto Carrier Division

•  Intern, Governor's Office

EDUCATION

University of Michigan Master of Public Policy
Gerald R. Ford School of Public Policy

Bachelor of Arts - English & Psychology

Michigamua - Senior Honor Society

AFHLIATIONS

New Hampshire Professionals Health Program
2015 - Present Board member. Treasurer (2018 - Present)

American Society of Association Executives

2004 Certified Association Executive (CAE)

2002 - 2013 Public Policy Committee

2013 - Present Summit (Power of Associations) and annual Awards Committees

2014 - 2020 Board of Directors, Political Action Committee (APAC)

Loudoun County Parks, Recreation & Open Space Board (2008 - 2015)

2012 - 2014 Chairman

2011 Vice-Chair
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Jane Tewksbury

Executive prof i le

Dynamic, versatile, senior-level executive professional with more than 20 years of managerial experience spent
successfully achieving business goals using leadership acumen.

Professional Ski lls

Strong interpersonal, organizational and leadership skills.

Human resource specialist focusing on recruitment, conflict management and providing guidance to employees.

Lead teams effectively, serving as an influential and empathetic workplace leader with successful communication skills.

Manage companies in a manner that enhances employee adaptability, productivity and engagement. .

Superior attention to detail to excel in deadline-driven settings.

Incorporates conscious leadership philosophy through active listening, collaboration and implementation.

Career Highlights

Employee Development: Oversaw Sodexo, Page Belting and BIA's employees including recruiting, hiring, training
and reviewing performance for highly-skilled individuals and teams. Worked in collaboration with key team members
to execute internal organizational restructuring.

Leadership: Trained management on trend awareness and performance improvement through targeted consultations
and spearheaded various human resource projects and initiatives to ensure compliance.

Networking Relationship Building: Successfully established countless contacts that fostered mutually beneficial
long-term relationships with individuals both in New Hampshire and nationwide.

Strategic Planning: Instrumental in evolving the BIA in order to achieve organizational growth goals; identified
erhployee inefficiencies and implemented optimized procedures to maximize resources.

Organizational Behavior: Effectively serves as a link between managers and employees by handling inquiries,
interpreting and administering contracts, and helping resolve work related problems to promote a positive work
environment.

Financial Governance: Created and implemented operable fiscal year budgets at Sodexo and BIA; monitored
compliance to ensure maximum profitability and identified ways to cut costs without falling short on expectations.

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY

NEW HAMPSHIRE MEDICAL SOCIETY | Chief Operating Officer January 2021- Present

Established in 1791 as the fourth medical society in U.S., representing over 4000 physicians who are dedicated to
advocating for their patients and the medical profession, as well as the betterment of public health in the Granite State.

Responsible for the finances including, payroll, accounts receivable, accounts payable and general ledger
maintenance for the 501(c)6 and 501 (c)3 non-profit organizations.

Ensures compliance with applicable laws, regulations and has secured appropriate license, insurance coverages,
state and municipal taxes, and other non-profit state reports.

Manages the day-to-day operations, including general oversight of staff, and day-to-day budget, facility maintenance
and other duties.

Supports the activities of the board and executive vice president/CEO. '

Ensures staff compliance and recommendsxhanges to personnel policies and procedures.
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BUSINESS & INDUSTRY ASSOCIATION OF NH | Senior VP of Operations & Finance, 2008-2021

New Hampshire's Statewide Chamber of Commerce and leading business advocate representing 400 employers with a
90-member executive board of directors.

Responsible for recruitment, selection and management of all BIA's staff and board of directors.

Responds timely to information requests from outside auditors, board of directors and BIA members.

Generate revenue stream by coaching staff on effective prospecting and lead development strategies.

Proactive in attending continuing education seminars to stay current on internal and external operational procedures.

Communicate financial information'to president and board of who do not have an extensive accounting background.

Proven ability to successfully manage multiple projects in a dynamic, fast paced environment while meeting deadlines.
Drives positive change and focuses on organizational initiatives to improve performance, productivity and team
cohesiveness.

Monitor individual and team performance and implements improvement plans when necessary.

Analyze data to help formulate solid financial plans to safeguard organizational sustainability.

PAGE BELTING COMPANY | Human Resource Manager. 1998-2006

One of New Hampshire's oldest manufacturing companies employing nearly 100 people.

Scheduled and conducted interviews; created and approved job offers and salary structures.

Directed human resource functions including recruitment, hiring, training, on-boarding and employee relations.

Ensured compliance with state, federal and local employment laws, as well as company standards, systems and
processes.

Provided confidential issue resolution while working with various levels of management.

Trained management on trend awareness and performance in compliance.

Reduced employee turnover through implementation of new incentive program / bonus structure to boost morale and
performance.

Proactively coached operations leaders on organizational effectiveness, performance management, engagement and
development topics including progressive discipline, reward and recognition, training and workforce diversity.

SODEXO 1 Operating Manager, 1995-1998

Sidewalk Caf6, located in the student union building at Plymouth State University

•  Recruited, hired, terminated and mentored college aged students and adults within the Plymouth State community.

•  Promoted and supported workplace diversity initiatives and created a positive work environment.

•  Directed daily general operations to ensure employees had appropriate equipment, inventory and resources to
operate by Sodexo's standards.

•  Developed / implemented plans and projects with defined objectives and timetables to support overall strategic plan
for upper management.

t

EDUCATION & Training

Bachelor of Science in Business Management

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

Course Emphasis: Administrative Policy, Interpersonal Relations, and Human Resource Management

Supervision Series Certified

NHTI, Concord NH

Leadership Greater Concord Graduate

Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce, Concord NH
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Jennifer Mazzei

Creative marketing strategist with 2CH- years of experience developing digital & traditional campaigns to

connect with a targeted audience. Experienced with leveraging market research, SEO, SEM, social

media, PPC, email campaigns, and web analytics to drive conversion and brand exposure.

EXPERIENCE

Director of Digital Marketing and Project Support, New Hampshire Medical Society - July 2021 • Present

•  Digital Strategy campaign creation including maintenance and updates of the Foundation and
NHMS website and associated digital assets such as social media ad management, online donations,
search engine marketing, and search engine optimization for events, membership, projects, public
awareness campaigns and products.

•  Graphic design of digital marketing material design such as flyers, online donation and
membership campaigns, brochures, social media graphics, event signage and banners, composing

ad layout for print advertising, digital advertising, and other marketing materials.

•  Directs marketing efforts for services, products and public awareness campaigns, including
coordinating of digital promotion of events, news releases and media advisories through.a variety

of communications channels, including social media.

•  Provides project management support to EVP/COO for state contracts and grant projects, such as
writing news releases, digital applications, online registrations and surveys, as well as
promotional emails, video testimonials, data management and facilitating meetings for project
advisory councils.

•  Point person for association & learning management systems training.

Director of Digital Marketing, Business & Industry Association (BIA) - March 2020 - June 2021

Lead marketing, sales, demand generation, and technical training for a membership based association.

•  Implement and train staff on new tools (slack, zoom, teams) for more effective remote.team

collaboration as well as the lead cyber security contact.

•  Plan and execute marketing and demand generation campaigns with a focus on email marketing

•  Perform market research and competitive brand analysis; develop digital campaigns to

emphasize brand values, goats, and visions to keep current members engaged while attracting

new members Increasing engagement rate from .2 to 5%

•  Spearheaded pandemic Information center for employers via website and social campaigns

increasing membership, brand awareness, and educational webinars.

•  Pivoted to new revenue Ideas when needed to adapt to the changing business climate and the

analyzed the data to ensure our efforts were successful and presented to the Board of Directors.

•  Designed marketing campaigns that drove traffic, increased sales, and brand awareness through

print ads, banner ads, digital flip book programs, email, and social media to promote events.

•  Collaborated with colleagues to create the first Livestream event for the Annual Dinner that

usually has over 700 In person attendees and exceeded goal for views on YouTube.



DocuSign Envelope ID: B70BOC4A-327E-45C7-8F17-84024E690AFA

Business Strategist, Marketing, Sales, J Maze Design

February 2000- March 2020

Lead strategist, SaaS sales and marketing for a 6 person web design and digital marketing agency.

Tasked with creating product strategy and leading the team in order to deliver a finished and marketable

product. Taking responsibility for the life cycle of a product along with identifying and marketing the'

product's defining features as well as evaluating profit analysis and forecasting.

Created in-house CMS SaaS for the ski industry, including ecommerce platform, booking, website

editor, and training. Responsible for overseeing development and marketing the product.

Implemented an event promotional strategy that encompassed tickets sales to more than

double in one event, utilizing social media and email segmentation methods for fast results.

Created digital strategy campaigns that had tangible ROI with google analytics, and social

dashboards resulting in company growth by 90% in one year and 200% in 3 years.

Designed print and digital materials that matched the brand for best exposure In print ads,'

banner ads, brochures, email marketing campaigns, and website design, creating a cohesive

message that is recognizable and reaches target audiences.

Business strategy initiatives that enable all the departments to work collaboratively to aim for

the same mission andgoals.

Excelled in Solution Selling Matrix (ABM) - listened to pain points, came up with solutions,

implemented solutions and had proven results for well over 800 clients.

Collaborated with partners, vendors, and clients to establish common goals and missions to

found solutions to save time and money and an overall success story.

Community leader and mentor. Emerging Young Entrepreneur Award, International

Communications Award, Pinnacle Award - Small Business of the Year, Co-founder CYPN

SKILLS

Social Media: Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, YouTube, Linkedin

Web Analytics: Google Analytics, SEO, SEM, Facebook INsights, Linkedin Analytics

Other Skills: Mallchimp. Constant Contact, Zoom, Slack, Microsoft Teams, Adobe Suite, Microsoft

Office, Behavioral Intelligence, Wordpress, Hubspot, Atlas, solution selling. Team player and motivator

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University Bachelor of Science, Business Administration, Computer Science

New Hampshire Technical Institute Certificate in Web design and development

Hubspot Academy: Certificate in Email Marketing

MindEdge Learning: Certificate in Content Marketing and Digital Strategy



DocuSign Envelope ID; B70B0C4A-327E-45C7-8F17-84024E690AFA

CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

James Potter Executive Vice President/CEO $180,000 5% $10,000

Jane Tewksbury Chief Operating Officer $130,000 2% $ 2,500

Jennifer Mazzei Director of Digital Marketing $100,000 17.5% $17,500
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Professional Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse (RPA-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-02)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

The NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers
Association

1.4 Contractor Address

100 North Main Street, Suite 400

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 541-7013

1.6 Account Number

05-92-92-920510-

33820000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$50,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
y«^OoeuSlo"*fl by:

1 Un-m. Uy«u.> d='9/i/2021
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Kerran Vigroux

Executive Director

1.13 Slate Agency Signature
OocuSloMd by:

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja Fox

Di rector

1.1 S^^^^rovaTby the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable) '

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
OoeuStatMd by:

By:| On: 7/12/2021
1.17 ApprovarCy'tKetj^emor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials^

Date^7T72TOT
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials^

Date
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a'greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason 9f
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof af)er
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
ail of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flies, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' cornpensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fiffy percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omitsnyft^of the

of 4 kl/
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

Page

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement -and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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y Contractor Initials

kl/

Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6D0E8395-76EC-4F97-BD30-955A8F7EAFEA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professlonai Awareness Campaign for Alcohol Misuse

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors,^ specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

RFA-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-02 The NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association Contractor initials
7/1/2021
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall expand medical, mental health and substance use disorder
provider awareness of the importance of addressing alcohol misuse by providing
messaging and distribution of existing materials created by the National Institute
on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism, as well as other evidence-based materials, to
its members, statewide.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure extensive networks are engaged in different aspects
of clinical care and infrastructures that support dissemination of information and
practice transformation. The Contractors shall:

1.2.1. Have a broad range of memberships involved in medical or behavioral
healthcare.

1.2.2. Ensure that distribution of information to members will yield continued
reach through various providers.

1.2.3. Work with memberships to enhance medical, mental health and
substance use disorder practices related to alcohol misuse to ensure
providers are aware of:

1.2.3.1. The harms of unhealthy alcohol use and its contribution to other
psychosocial challenges.

1.2.3.2. How to effectively approach topics related to alcohol use with
patients.

1.2.3.3. The value of screening, brief advice/intervention, and
pharmacological treatments, in addition to psychosocial
therapies, in addressing harmful alcohol use.

1.2.3.4. Referral sources and processes to access specialty care for
Alcohol Use Disorder (AUD).

1.3. The Contractor shall create messaging from existing resource materials to
encourage their membership:

1.3.1. Identify patients' alcohol misuse;

1.3.2. Advise patients on healthier behaviors regarding alcohol use;

1.3.3. Treat patients with AUD and/or refer patients to specialty AUD
treatment services; and

1.3.4. Follow up with patients regarding alcohol use and provide support for
recovery.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide their membership with existing resource materials
developed by federal, state and/or professional medical and/or behavioral healthorganizations to support members with enhancing patient care related tcj^^hol

RFA-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-02 The NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Associallon Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B

use in digital and/or print formats. The Contractor shall ensure materials include,
but are not limited to:

1.4.1. Information for patients including:

1.4.1.1. Safe drinking guidelines.

1.4.1.2. Medical and behavioral heajth risks associated with alcohol
misuse.

1.4.1.3. Patient resources to change their alcohol use patterns.

1.4.2. ADD screening tools.

1.4.3. Skills to provide brief advice/intervention.

1.4.4. Best practices for treating AUD including:

1.4.4.1. Pharmacological treatments; and

1.4.4.2. Psychosocial therapies.

1.4.5. Information on how to locate, refer to and access resources including,
but not limited to:

1.4.5.1. AUD specialty treatment.

1.4.5.2. Recovery Support Services.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan in a format requested by the
Department within 30 days of the contract effective date that identifies:

3.1.1. A member distribution list;

3.1.2. A list of federal and state resources for distribution to members; and

3.1.3. AUD message development from existing resources identified in
Subsection 1.3.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide an expense report in a format requested by the
Department 30 days after the initial payment identified in Exhibit C, Payment
Terms that identifies allowable expenses that shall be incurred during the
contract.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide a final report 30 days before the end of this Contract
in a format requested by the Department. The Contractor shall ensure the final
report includes:

3.3.1. The number of members in their association; .—ds

[ki/
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EXHIBITS

3.3.2. The type of message, as identified in Subsection 1.3, above, and the
percentage of members who received them;

3.3.3. List of messaging resources identified in Subsection 1.4 that were
provided to members and the type of resource materials that were
provided, which includes digital and/or printed materials; and

3.3.4. An expense report for all expenses incurred in the delivery of services
identified in this contract.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with providers to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.2. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from the Contractor
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.3. The Department may identify expectations for active and regular collaboration,
including key performance objectives, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, the Contractor must collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance; Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English
proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a—os

kiy
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Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided In part by the Slate of New i
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including,'but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Departnient, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations
of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have' access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of
the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon payment
of. the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligatioris-ofe the

kl/
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EXHIBIT B

parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Agreement
are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement and/or survive
the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the-Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

RFA-2022-BDAS-01-PROFE-02 The NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Other funds (Governor Commssion).

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
upon approval of the work plan identified in Exhibit B, Scope of Services,
Section 3., Subsection 3.1 for an amount not to exceed 50% of the amount
specified in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation.

4. The Contractor shall submit documentation that details allowable expenses
incurred in the previous month no later than the 15'^ day of the following month.

5. The Contractor shall submit a final invoice for an amount not to exceed up to
the remaining balance of the amount specified in Form P-37, General
Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation with the final report and supporting
documentation, specified in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, no later than thirty
(30) days before the date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions, Block
1.7. Completion Date.

5.1. Any unspent start-up payment funds will be returned to the Department
within 30 days of the date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions,
Block 1.7., Completion Date.

5.2. The Department may recoup payments processed in accordance with
Section 3, in whole or in part, in the event that the Contractor does not
complete the services detailed in Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices or expense reports may be assigned an
electronic signature and emailed to dhhs.invoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.qov. or
invoices may be mailed to:

Lindy Keller
Department of Health and Human Services
DBH-Bureau of Drug & Alcohol
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of Form P-37, General
Provisions.

RFA-2022-BDAS-01-PROE-02 The NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service
Providers Association Contractor Initials
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8. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or In part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to

melissa.s.morin@dhhs.nh.qov if any of the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

,  DS
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13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. ̂ In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

DS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each'federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

f
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

—OeeuSlgnad by:

7/1/2021

Date ^ Name: ■■ vi 9 roux
Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached arid identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and co>operative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil perialty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

OoeuSlgnwl by:

7/1/2021

Date " vi g roux
Title:

fcuTiiU. UArdU>

Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting'this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system ofjej:ords
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

w
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

F^RIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, felsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

-OocuSleiwd by:

7/1/2021

Diti >JaMi^'^-vigroux
Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require.any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal Ending under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government sen/ices, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

)

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant.Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Rub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment. ^
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

OoeuSlQMd by:C^DoeusiQMd by:
Date Name: Kerran' vigroux

Executive Director

L-ds
L
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor^facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order or) the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

—DocuSign«d by:

7/1/2021
\ . »<3Br«ir9A>WPF„,., ■

Date ' Name: Kerran vigroux

Executive Director

tl/
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaarecation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or receiv

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.'
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

I

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busif^s^
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity. ,

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ 9|:iate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivijig^yi
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during, normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasibte, for so long as Business tiy
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or llmitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall.report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othen/vise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. yy

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials^
Heaith insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 7/1/2021

Page 5 of 6 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6D0E8395-76EC-4F97-BD30-955A8F7EAFEA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the;
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services NH Alcohol & other Drug Service Providers Association

by: ^oaesoUls^ Contractor

feuTAU,

Signature of Authorized Representative Slgnature'^/'Xuthorized Representative
Katja FOX Kerran vigroux

Name of Authorized Representative
Di rector

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

7/6/2021 7/1/2021

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 6 of 6

Contractor Initials

-OS

Date
7/1/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 6D0E8395-76EC-4F97-BD30-955A8F7EAFEA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

DocuSlgnAd by:

7/1/2021 I tuTAU, Uywy
Diti ' Name™''"'''^""

Executive Director

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 7/1/2021

cu/OHHS/110713 Page! of2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

094727197
1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/U0713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Date
7/1/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Sen/ices (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractorinitials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements 7/1/2021
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

/

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

-OS

[w
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. \

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the sen/ices rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting

.  infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion^and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, .and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

'  (—^
^1. kV/
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/of
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

s

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

-DS
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. • Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

[Iv
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE NH ALCOHOL AND

OTHER DRUG SERVICE PROVIDERS ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on June 09, 2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 746259

Certificate Number: 0005385720

%

u.

e

A

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 23rd day of June A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Jason D. Gregoire, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am the duly elected Vice President and President Elect of the New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service
Providers Association.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on July 7, 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Kerran Vigroux is duly authorized on behalf of the New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service
Providers Association to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its
agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated; July 7. 2021 L
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Jason D. Gregoire
Title: Vice President & President Elect

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID; 6DOE8395-76EC-4F97-BD30-955A8F7EAFEA

ACO#?0* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DDrVYYV)

06/30/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A RflATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Eleanor Spinazzola
JKr.,,. (803) 293-2791 (603)293-7188
Ai^nW^;- Elcanor8pinazzolaOesinsurance.net

INSURERfS) AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Great Americanlnsurance Group GAIG

INSURED

NH Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Assn

100 North Main St. Suite 400

CoTKOrd NH 03301

INSURERS: F'^tComp 27626

INSURER C :

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DDTYVYYI

POUCVEXP
IMM/DO/YYYY) UMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL OQ4 ERAL UABIUTY

E  1 X| OCCUR

PAC 2248767 13 06/19/2021 06/19/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1.000,000

CLAIMS-MAO

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFMISF.S lEa oceurranca)

, 100,000

MED EXP (Any ona oamonl
, 5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
, 1,000,000

GENERAL AGGREGATE
, 2.000.000

—

POLICY 1_J JECT 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMPfOPAGG
, 2,000.000

S

1 AUTOMOeOE UABIUTY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea Kcidani)

S

ANY AUTO

IHEDULED

ITOS
>N.OWNEO
iTns nwi Y

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
AU

BODILY INJURY (Par tcddant) s

NC
A\

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPar aeddarN)

8

s

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

1

EACH OCCURRENCE 8

AGGREGATE 8

DED 1 1 RETENTK3N 8 8

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY y/N
ANY PROPRIETORyPARTNER®CECUTIVE
OFFICERfl^EMBER EXCLUDED? | |
(Mandatory In NH)
if yaa. daaedba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bakw

N/A WC0107239-12 04/09/2021 04/09/2022

V' PER OTH-
rFS .rrTATinT FR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
, 100,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
, 100,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
, 500,000

OES(:RtPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddUenal Ramartia Schadula. may ba attachad if mera spaea 1* (aqulrad)

State of NH Department of

Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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THE

NH PrOvibers
ASSOCIATION

Representing

Alcohol S: Other Drug Service Providers
.in New Hair\^hire

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the NH Providers Association Is to represent its members in advancing

substance use prevention, treatment and recovery through public policy, leadership,

professional development, and quality member services.

We envision a New Hampshire with an all-encompassing continuum of care that

successfully addresses the public health impacts of substance use.
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990
(Rav. January 2020)

Oaparvnani of Iha Tr«a«.«y
Imemal Ravanua Sarvfca

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501 (c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
^  Do not enter social security numt>ers on this form as it may be made public.

► Go to www.lrs.gov/Fonn9901or instructions and the latest Information.

0MB No. 1S45-0047

;®19
Open to Public

Inspection
A For the 2019 calendar year, or tax year_beglnnlng_ 7/1/2019

B Check If applicable:

rn AdOreM change
[~~| Name char>ge

□ Initial return
|~1 Final (BtuRVtenninatad
r~1 Amended return

□ Application pending

^n^ndiir^ 6/30/2020

C Name o> organization New Hampshire Aicohol & Other Drug Sen/ice Prosriders Ass
Doing butineta as Nevr Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Associ;
Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

100 North Main Street

Room/suite

400
City or town

Concord
State

NH

ZIP code

03301
Foreign country name Foreign provlnca/state/county Foreign postal code

D Employer Identification number

83-0393316
E Telephone number

603-225-9540

G_^ro88jeMlgs_^ 172.869

F Name and address of principal omcen

John ludice 100 North Main St Suite 400. Concord, NH 03301

I  Tax-exempt status: ■0 501(cM3)I  I 501(c) ( ) 4 (insert no.) □ 4947(a)(1) or □527

j WebSite: ► www.thenhproviders.org

H(a) IstnisagroupretLxnfortubonlinaies? I lYesFin No
H(b) Are all subordinates Included? I I Yes I I No

If 'No.* attach a list, (see instructions)

H(c) Group exemption number ►

K Form of organization: \ X | Corporation I I Trust □ Association □ Other L Year of formation: 2003 M State of legal domicile: fgn

Summary

2

3
4

5

6

7a
b

11

Briefty describe Uie organization's mission or most significant activities: J^Q.ipjssJon ls jo rep/esentjte_mem^rs m
advancing substance usepreyentjopj Ueatment afid_recover)f _th_rpugh_p,^^^
leadership^professignaJ_de_velo^ment^_and_gu_alJ^ member se^iM
Check this box ►a if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line la).
Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line lb).
Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a). .
Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary)
Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12
Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T. line 39

7a

7b

11

8

9

10

11

Contributions and grants (Part VIII. line 1h)
Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g)
Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4. and 7d)
Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and lie).

12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII. column (A), line-12).

Prior Ytar Currant Yaar

160,615 20,620
168,626 151,552

12 17

350 680

329,603 172,869

13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3)
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4)
16 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10). .
16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line lie)

b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) ► 0
17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e)
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25). .
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12

5,683
96,443 67.892

175.261 199,991
277,387 267,883

52,216 -95,014

•I
1!

Baglnnlng of Currant Yaar End of Yaar

20 Total assets (Paft X, line 16)
21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26)
22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20

211,534 116,520

211,534 116.520

Signature BlockPart II
Under penaRiea of perjury, I declare that I have examined this retum, including accompanying schedutos and statements, and to the best of my knowledga
and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowtedge,

Sign
Here

Signature of officer

Michele Merritt

Date

Treasurer

Type or print name and title

Paid
Preparer
Use Only

PrtntfType preparer's name PrepareFs signature Date
Check Q If
self-employed

PTIN

Eric Rowlev 11/10/2020 P00581700

Firm's name V Rowlev & Associates, P.C.
Firm's address » 46 N. State Street, Concord, NH 03301

Firm's EIN^ 02-0522619

Phone no. (603)228-5400

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) (IH Yes I I No
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
HTA

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Doiq Service Providers Association 83-0393316 2

Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any line in this Part III , [Tl

1  Briefly describe the organization's mission:
The mission of the NH Providers Association js tp rep/esent its mem^/_s^
substance use prevention^ treatment and recoyery throu^^h^pubjic jjoljcyj leader^^^^^
professional development^ and guaHty meml^rjseryioes. We enyjsion a
all encompassing continuum of care that successfully addresses the public health impacts of substance use.

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 or 990-E2? Q Yes No
If "Yes." describe these new services on Schedule O.

3  Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 267.883_ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $
Advocate, facilitate and enhance communication wijh_^nders, PoHcy makers_arid th^^
support members efforts to offer high quajity substance abuse p/eyentiqn^treatmenti and rew
support services for citizens of NH.

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.)

(Expenses S 0 including grants of $ 0 )(Revenue $ 0 )

4e Total orooram service expenses ► 267.883
Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) Nev/ Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

10

11

e

f

12a

13

14a

b

15

16

17

18

19

20a

b

21

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If 'Yes,"
complete Schedule A

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B. Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If 'Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part II

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5). or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If 'Yes.'complete Schedule C, Part III

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
'Yes,' complete Schedule D. Part I

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space.
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part II

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If'Yes,'
complete Schedule D, Part III

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21. for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide aedit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt
negotiation services? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IV

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi endowments? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part V

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D. Parts VI,
VII, VIII, IX, orX as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule D, Part VI

Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII

Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, tine 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VIII.

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in PartX, line 16? If 'Yes,'complete Schedule D, Part IX.

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X..
Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X . . .
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule D, Parts XI and XII

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,'
and if the organization answered'No'to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Paris XI and XII is optional. . .

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1 )(A)(ii)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule E
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantm'aking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3. more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If 'Yes.' complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3. more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services
on Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and ̂ ^e? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part I {see instructions)

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If 'Yes,'complete Schedule G, Part II

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?
If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part III

Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule H
If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retum?
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line" 1 ? /f 'Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and II

YtS No

1 X

2 X

■ 3 X

4 X

5 X

6 X

7 X

8 X

9 X

10 X

11a X

lib X

11c X

lid X

lie X

11f X

12a X

12b X

13 X

14a X

14b X

15 X

16 X

17 X

18 X

19 X

20a X

20b

21 X

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019)

Part IV

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 Pege4

Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

22

23

24a

b

c

d

25a

26

27

28

b

c

29

30

31

32

33

34

35a

b

36

37

38

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX. column {A), line 2?/f"V0S,''comp/e/0 Sc/redu/e/, Parts/and///

Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII. Section A, line 3, 4. or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated

employees? If 'Yes," complete Schedule J

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than

$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31. 2002? If "Yes,' answer lines
24b through 24d and complete Schedule K. If 'No,' go to line 25a

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds?

Did the organization act as an "on behalf of issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?
Section 501(c)(3). 501(c)(4), and S01(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a
prior year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or

990-EZ? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part I

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22. for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part II

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L. Pert III

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L.
Part IV instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor?/^

irYes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV
A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a of 28b? If
irYes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV -

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule /W. . .
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part I
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets?
If 'Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part II

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part II,
III, or IV, and Part V, line 1

Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?
If "Yes" to line 35a. did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled

entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R. Part V, line 2

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part VI. . .

Did the organization complete Schedule 0 and provide explanations in Schedule 0 for Part VI, lines 11b and
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule 0

Y«« No

22 X

23 X

24a X

24b

24c

24d

25a X

25b X

26 X

27 X

28a X

28b X

28c X

29 X

30 X

31 X

32 X

33 X

34 X

35a

35b

36 X

37 X

38 X

Part V

Check if Schedule 0 contains a response or note to any line in this Part V □
Yt> No

la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a 1

b  Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1 a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0

c  Did the oroanization complv with backup withholding rules'for reportable payments to vendors and reportable 1
qaminq (gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1c X

Form 990(2019)
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Form 990 (2019)

PartV

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association _83;0393316__P82£_^
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)

2a

3a

b

4a

5a

b

c

6a

10

11

12a

b

13

a

c

14a

b

15

16

2a

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3. Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . .

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . . . .

Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. (see instructions)

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If 'No' to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ►
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 11*4, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . . .
If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?
If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible?
Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor?
If "Yes." did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided?
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file Form 8282?
If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year I 7d I

10b

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?. . .
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?
If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did tiie organization file Form 8899 as required?. .
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? .
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?
Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 10a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities . . . .
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
Gross income from members or shareholders

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.)
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? .
If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year 112b I
Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans
Enter the amount of reserves on hand

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?. . .

11a

lib

13b

13c

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If 'No,' provide an explanation on Schedule 0 . . .
Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year
If "Yes." see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? .
If "Yes." complete Form 4720. Schedule O.

2b

3a

3b

4a

5a

5b

5c

6a

6b

7a

7b

7c

7e

7f

22.
7h

9a

9b

12a

13a

14a

14b

15

16

Y*s Ho

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019)

Part VI

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Dnjq Service Providers Association 03-0393316

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a 'No'
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule 0. See instnjctions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI [x]

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a 1a

1b

4

5

6

7a

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. .
If there are material differences in voting rights among meml>ers of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule 0.

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1 a, above, who are independent. .

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee?

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? .
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?.
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?.
Did the organization have members or stockholders?
Did the organization have meml>ers, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governing body?

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) memt>ers,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body?

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during
the year by the following:
The governing body?
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot t>e reached
at the organization's mailing address? If 'Yes.' provide the names and addresses on Schedule O

11

11

Yot No

2 X

3 X

4 X

5 X

6 X

7a X

7b X

8a X

8b X

9 X

Section B. PoliciesY7/?/s Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
YM

10a

b

11a

b

12a

b

c

13

14

15

a

b

16a

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?
If "Yes." did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes?

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of Its governing body before filing the form?.
Describe in Schedule 0 the process, if any. used by the organization to review this Form 990.

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If 'No,' go to line 13
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts?
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes,"
describe in Schedule O how this was done

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official
Other officers or key employees of the organization

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to. or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year?

If "Yes." did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law. and take steps to safeguard
the organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements?

10a

10b

11a

12a

12b

12c

13

14

15a

15b

16a

16b

No

Section 0. Disclosure

17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to t>e filed ► NH
IB Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 99*6, and 990-T (Section 501(c)S5 only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website Q Another's website 0 IJpo" request ^ on Schedule 0)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,

and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ►

100 North Main Street. Suite 400. Concord. NH 03301
Form 990(2019)
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Forni 990 (2019) New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316

Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any line in this Part VII . | |

Section A. Officers. Directors. Trustees. Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

• List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
• List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."
• List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

• List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

• List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

E Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A)
Name and tiUe

(B)
Average
hours

per week

(list any
hours for

related

organlzationi

below

dotted Khe)

(C)

Position

(do not check more than one

box. unless person is both an
officer and a director/trustee)

(0)
Reportable

compensation
from the

organization

(W-2/1099-MISC)

(E)
Reportable

compensation
from related

organizations
(W-2/109944ISC)

IF)
Estimated amount

of other

compensation
from the

organization and
related organizations

11
l|

*/>

i

 lanoitutitsnitrustee OfAcer
 yeKemployee Highestcodetasnepmemployee

Former

(1) John ludice 2.00

X XPresident 0.00

(2) Ryan Fowler 2.00

XBoard Member 0.00

(3) Jason Gregpire 2.00

X XVice President 0.00

' (4| Michele Merritt 2.00

X XTreasurer 0.00

(5| Sue Gordon 2.00

X XSecretary 0.00

(6) l^nne Towie 2.00

XBoard Member 0.00

(7) Jason Snook 2.00

XBoard Member 0.00

(8) Greg Williams 2.00

XBoard Member 0.00

(9) Brian Moonej^ 2.00

X rBoard Member 0.00

(10) Jessica Pamell 2.00

XBoard Member 0.00

(11) Peter Burke 2.00

XBoard Member 0.00

.(12)

.(13)

.(14)

Fofm 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019)

Part VII

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 _Pa22_^
Section A. Officers. Directors. Trustees, Key t, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A)
Name arxl title

(B)
Average

hour*

per week

(list any

hours (or

relaterl

organizations
below

dotted line)

(C)
Position

(do not check more than one
box, unless person is both an
ofHcer and a director/trustee)

(D)
Reportable

compensation
from the

organization
(W-2/1099-M1SC)

(6)
Reportable

compensation
from related

organizations
(W-2/1099^ISC)

(F)
Estimated amount

o( other

compensation

from the

organization and
reiaied orgahtzatfoRs

||
1 5
" i
1
i
1

o

<0

3

(D Z

Is
o

A 8

3

3

3

■n

1

(.15)

oq

(.171

m

(191 —

(201 -

(211

(221 . -

(231

(241 -

(251

lb Subtotal - . . . ►

►

0 0 0

c  Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A 0 0 0

d  Total (add lines 1b and 1c) ^ 0 0 0

2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization ►

Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1 a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such individual
For any individual listed on line la, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If 'Yes," complete Schedule J for such
individual

Did any person listed on line la receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization?/f"yes,'comp/efe Schedu/e J for such person. . .

Yes No

Section B. Independent Contractors
1  Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

(A)
Name and business address

IB)
Description of services

(C)
Compensation

0

0

0

0

0

2  Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received
more than $100,000 of compensation from the oroanization ► 0 0

Form 990(2019)
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Form 990 (2019) New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 Page 9

Part VIII Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII. □
(A)

Total revenue

(B)
Related or exempt
function revenue

(C)
Unrelated

business revenue

(0)
Revenue excluded

from tax under

sections 512-514

Contributions, fiGts, Grants  dnaOther Si ralimAmounts
la Federated campaigns la 0

■

b Membership dues lb 14.115

c  Fundratsing events
d Related organizations
e Government grants (contributions). . .
f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and

similar amounts not included above . .
9 Noncash contributions included in

1c 0

Id 0

1e 0

If 6,505

la $  0

h Total. Add lines la-lf .  .► 20.620

Program Service Revenue

2a Conferences

Buslnest Code

900099 147,824 147,824

b Meetings, Events & Training
c

900099 3,728 3,728
0

d 0

e 0

f All other program service revenue . . . .
a Total. Add lines 2a-2f

0
> 151,552

Other Revenue

3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) ►

4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds. . . >
5  Royalties ►

17 17

0

0

6a Gross rents

b Less: rental expenses . .
c Rental income or (loss)
d Net rental income or (loss)

6a

(i) Real (ii) Personal

6b

6c 0 0
► 0

7a Gross amount from
sales of assets

other than inventory . .
b Less: cost or other basis

and sales expenses. .
c Gain or (loss)
d Net aain or (loss). . . .

7a

(!) Securitlet (ii) Other

0 0

7b 0 0

7c 0 0

0

8a Gross income from fundraising
events (not including $ 0
of contributions reported on line 1c).
See Part IV, line 18 8a 0

Bh 0

c Net income or (loss) from fundratsing even
9a Gross income from gaming activities.

See Part IV, line 19
b Less: direct expenses
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities

10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances

b Less: cost of goods sold

ts ► 0

9a 0

9b 0
► 0

10a 0
'

10h 0

c Net income or (loss) from sales of inventorV . . ► 0

Miscellaneous Revenue

11a OTHER INCOME

Busir>ess Code 1

900099 '  680 680

b 0

c 0

d Ail other revenue 0 •

e Total. Add lines 11a-11d ► 680

12 Total revenue. See instructions. .' ► 172.869 152,232 0 17

Form 990(2019)
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Form 990 (2019)

Part IX

Nev>f Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 _Pa2« 10

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizalions must complete all columns. AH other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule 0 contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX □
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b,
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.

(A)
Total expenses

(B)
Program service

expenses

(C)
Management and
general ex^nses

(D)
Fundraising
expenses

1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
domestic govemments. See Part IV, line 21 0

2  Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 0

3  Grants and other assistance to' foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV. lines 15 and 16 0

4  Benefits paid to or for members 0

6  Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 0 0

6  Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 0

7  Other salaries and wages 65,856 65,856
8  Pension plan accruals and contributions (include

section 401 (k) and 403(b) employer contributions). . .
9  Other employee benefits

0

0

10 Payroll taxes / 2,036 2,036

11 Fees for services (nonemptoyees):
a Management 0

b Legal • • • 0

c Accounting 1,523 1,523

d Lobbying 16,500 16,500

e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17. . .
f  Investment management fees

0

0

9 O^er. (If line 11g amount ex(»eds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.) 0 0

12 Advertising and promotion 0

13 Office expenses 2,119 2.119

14 Information technology 4.112 4,112

15 Royalties 0

16 Occupancy '. . . . 0

17 Travel 122 122

18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials 0

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 155,854 155,854

20 Interest 0 .

21 Payments to affiliates 0

22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 0 0 0 0

23 Insurance 2,191 2,191

24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)

a Shared Services 11,187 11,187

b Memberships 6,383 6,383

c 0

d 0

e All other expenses 0

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e . . 267,883 264,241 3,642 0

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here ► if
followina SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019)

PartX

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 Pao«11

Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . □
(A)

Beginning of year
(B)

End of year

7

e

9

10a

11

12

13

14

15

16

Cash—non-interest-bearing
Savings and temporary cash investments
Pledges and grants receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family memljer of any of these persons
Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(0(1)). and persons descrit>ed in section 49S8(c)(3)(B)
Notes and loans receivable, net
Inventories for sale or use

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . .
Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D
Less: accumulated depreciation
Investments—publicly traded securities
Investments—other securities. See Part IV. line 11 .
Investments—program-related. See Part IV. line 11
Intangible assets
Other assets. See Part IV, line 11

10a

10b

211,534

10c

11

12

13

14

0 IS

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) 211,534 16

116,520

116.520

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Grants payable
Deferred revenue

Tax-exempt bond liabilities
Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . .
Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . .
Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties
Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete
PartX of Schedule D

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here ^
and complete lines 27. 28, 32, and 33.
Net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions
Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here ^ Q
and complete lines 29 through 33.
Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds
Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund
Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . .
Total net assets or fund balances
Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances

211,534 27

28

29

30

0 31

211.534 32

211.534 33

116,520

116,520
116.520

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 Paq«12

Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI □
1  Total revenue {must equal Part VIII. column (A), line 12)
2  Total expenses {must equal Part IX. column {A), line 25)
3  Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year {must equal Part X. line 32, column {A))
5  Net unrealized gains {losses) on investments
6  Donated services and use of facilities
7  Investment expenses

1 172,869
2 267,883
3 -95,014
4 211.534
S

6

7

8  Prior period adjustments 8

9  Other changes in net assets or fund balances {explain on Schedule 0)
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X. line 32,

column (B))

9

10 116,520
IJlSmW Financial Statements and Reporting _

□Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: Cash Q Accrual ^3 Other
If the organization'changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in
Schedule O.

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?. . . .
If "Yes," check a box t>elow to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
I  I Separate basis Q Consolidated basis Q Both consolidated and separate basis
Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?
If "Yes." check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
I  \ Separate basis Consolidated basis Q Both consolidated and separate basis
If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?. .
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule 0.

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and 0MB Circular A-133?
If "Yes." did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits .

2a

2b

2c

3a

3b

Ym No

Form 990(2018)
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SCHEDULE A

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Conyleta If Itte organization la a aoctlon M1(cM3) organization or a aoctlon 4947<a)(1) nonaxampt charltaMa trust.

^ Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

^ Goto www./rs.aov/Fomi990for Instructions and the latest information.

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

New Hamoshire Alcohol & Other Druq Service Providers Association

EmployaridantlflcatJon numlMr

03-0393316

Part! Reason for Public Charity Status (All orqanizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
\  \ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(l).
rn A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(li). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-E2).)

□ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(lii).
I  I A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the

hospital's name, city, and state: ^
5 Q An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)

6 □ A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
7 0 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public

described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
8 Q A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
9 Q An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enterjhe name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 Q An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30. 1975. See section S09(a)(2). (Complete Part III.)

11 Q An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. Seesection S09(a)(4).
12 Q An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes

of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section S09(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines .12e, 12f, and 12g.

a  Type 1. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b  Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Q Type III functionally Integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Q Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e Q Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III
functionally integrated, or Type 111 non-functionally integrated supporting organization,

f  Enter the number of supported organizations I 3
(!) Name of aupported organization (II) EIN (111) Type of organization

(described on lines 1-10
above (see Instnjctlons))

(Iv) Is the organization
listed In your governing

document?

(v) Amount of monetary
support (see
instructions)

(vl) Amount of
other support (see

Instructions)

Yes No

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Total 0 0

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
HTA

Schvdui* A (Fonn ««0 or 99e£Z) 2019
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Schedui* A (Form 990 of 990-ez) 2019 New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316

Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(lv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under
Part III. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) >■
1  Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2  Tax revenues levied for the

organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities

furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3
5  The portion of total contributions by

each person (other than a
governmental unit or publidy
supported organization) induded on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11. column (0

8  Public support. Subtract Una S from lln« 4

(3)2015 (b)2016 (c) 2017 (d)2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total

84,572 171,155 133.085 160,615 20,620 570.047

0

•

0

84.572 171.155 133.085 160.615 20.620 570.047

570.047

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

10

11

12

13

Amounts from line 4

Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources

Net income from unrelated business

activities, whether or not the business is
regularly carried on
Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VI.)

Total support Add lines 7 through 10.

(3)2015 (b) 2016 (c)2017 (d)2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total

84.572 171.155 133,085 160.615 20.620 570.047

12 17 29

0

350 680 1.030
571.106

ee instrudions) 12 151.552

First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14

15

14 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 6. column (0 divided by line 11. column (0)
15 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part II. line 14
16a 33 1/3*/* support tost—2019. If the organization did not check the box on lir>e 13, arxJ line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 33 1/3% support test—2018. If the organization did not checka t>ox on line 13 or 16a. and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this

box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2019. If the organization did not check a t>ox on line 13.16a. or 16b. and line 14
10% or more, and if the organization meets the lacts-and-drcumstances' lest, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the 'facts-arxJ-circumstances" lest. The organization qualifies as a publicly' supported
organization

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13. 16a, 16b. or 17a. and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-arxJ-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.
Explain In Part VI how the organization meets the Tacts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publidy
supported organization

Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13. 16a. 16b. 17a. or 17b. check this box and see
Instructions

18

99.81%

99.95%

► 0

Schtdult A (Fonn 9«0 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Forni 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 03-0393316 _Page_^

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a){2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In) ^
1  Gift*, grants, contributions, and membership fees

received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.*)

2  Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities

fumished in any activity that is related to the

(a)2015 (b) 2016 (c)2017 (d)201B (e) 2019 (f) Total

0

0

3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an

unrelated trade or business under section 513 . .

4 Tax revenues levied for the

organization's benefit and either paid to

or expended on its t>ehalf

0

0

5  The value of services or fadlitles

fumished by a govemmental unit to the

organization without charge 0

6  Total. Add lines 1 through 5 0 0 0 0 0 0

7a Amounts included on lines 1. 2, and 3

received from disqualified persons . . . .

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3

received from other than disqualified

persons that exceed the greater of 35,000
or 1% of Ihe amount on line 13 for the year. . .

c Add lines 7a and 7b

0

>

0

0 0 0 0 ,  0 0

8  Public support (Subtract line 7c from

line 6.) 0

Section B. Total Suooort

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In) >

9 Amounts from line 6

- (a) 2015 (b)2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e)2019 (f) Total

0 0 0 0 0 0

10a Gross incoma from Interest, dividertds,

payments received on securities loans, rents,

royalties, arvl income from similar sources . . .

b Unrelated business taxable Income (less

section 511 taxes) from businesses

acquired after June 30.1975

0

0

c Add lines 10a and 10b 0 0 0 0 0 0

11 Net income from unrelated business

activities not included in line 10b. whether

or not the business is regularly carried on .

12 Other income. Do not include gain or

loss from the sale of capital assets

(Explain in Part VI.)

0

-

0

13 Total support (Add lines 9. lOc, 11.

and 12.) 0 0 0 0 0 0

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box ar>d stop here i >□

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13. column (0)
16 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A. Part III, line 15

15

16

0.00%

0.00%

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17

18
17 Investment income percentage for 2019 (line 10c. column (f), divided by tine 13. column (0)
18 Investment Income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part III, line 17
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is

not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 33 1/3% support tests—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a. and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14,19a. or 19b. check this box and see instructions

0.00%
0.00%

>□
Schvdule A (Form SSO or 990-EZ) 2019
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Sctiedute A (Fofm 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 _P8ge^

Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I. complete
Sections A. D. and E. If you checked 12d of Part I. complete Sections A and D. and complete Part V.)

Section A. Ail Supportlrig Organizations

1  Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If 'No,' describe in Part W how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

2  Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 5d9(a)(1) or (2).

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5). or (6)? If 'Yes,' enswer
(b) and (c) below.

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If 'Yes,' describe in Part W when and how the
organization made the determination.

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)
(B) purposes? If "Yes." explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If
'Yes.'and if you checked 12a or 12b in Pert I. answer (b) and (c) below.

' b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part W what controls the organization used

to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,"
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(Hi) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

b Type I or Type II only.Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?
6  Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class t>enefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If 'Yes,'provide detail in Part VI.

7  Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 495B(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If 'Yes,' complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

8  Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If 'Yes,' complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

c Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionatly integrated
supporting organizations)? If 'Yes," answer 10b below.

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C. Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes No

1

•

2

1
3a

3b

1
3c

1
4a

4b

4c

Sa

1
5b

5c

6

"•

7

1
8

9a

9b

9c

10a

10b

SchaduU A (Fonn 990 or 990-EZ} 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 New Hampshire Alcohol & other Daiq Service Providers Association 83-0393316

Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the follov^ing persons?
a  A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)

below, the governing body of a supported organization?
b A family member of a person described in (a) above?
c  A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If 'Yes' to a. b. or c. provide detail in Part VI.

Yes No

11a

lib

11c

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations

Did the directors, trustees, or memt>ership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No." describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.
Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organi2ation(s) that operated,

Yes No

supervisea. or coniroiiea ine suppomnq orqanizauun.

Section C. Type 11 Supportinq Oraanizations
Yes No

1  Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No." describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the suDDOrted oroanizationfsl 1

Section D. All Type ill Supportinq Orqanizations
Y N

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?
Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).
By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard.

es o

Section E. Type ill Functionally integrated Supporting Organizations

1  Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see Instructions).
a Q The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.

b Q The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

c Q The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

2  Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below.

a  Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI Identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

b  Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more

of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement,

i  Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a  Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI.

b  Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If "Yes." describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes No

2a

2b

3a

3b

Schftdult A (Form 990 or 990*eZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316

PartV Type III Non-Functionallv Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
I  I Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20,1970 (explain in Part \/l).See

Section A • Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year
(B) Current Year

(optional)

1 Net short-term capital gain ■' 1

2 Recoveries of prior-vear distributions 2

3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3

4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4 0 0

5 Depreciation and depletion 5

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions) 6

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5. 6. and 7 from line 4). 8 0 0

Section B • Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year (8) Current Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year);

a Average monthly value of securities la

b Average monthly cash balances lb

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c

d Total (add lines la. lb. and 1c) 1d 0 0

e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3 0 0

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4 0 0

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5 0 0

6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 6 0 0

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7 0 0

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8 0 0

Section C • Distributable Amount Current Year

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A. line 8. Column A) 1 0

2 Enter 85% of line 1 2 0

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B. line 8, Column A) 3 0

4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4 0

5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5

6 Distributable Amount Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6 0

7 Q Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionalty integrated Type
instructions).

supporting organization (see

Sch«4ul« A (Form 9M or 990-£Z) 2019
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Part V Type III Non-Functlonailv Integrated 509(a)(3) Supportinq Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accompiish exempt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

3 Administrative expenses paid to accompiish exempt purposes of supported organizations

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 0

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

9 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C. line 6 0

10 Line 8 amount divided bv line 9 amount 0.000

Section E • Distribution Allocations (see instructions) (i)
Excess Distributions

(li)

Underdistributions

Pre-2019

(III)

Distributable

Amount for 2019

1  Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 0

2  Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See

instructions.

3  Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2019

a  From 2014 0

b From 2015 0

c From 2016 0

d From 2017 0

e From 2018 0

f Total of tines 3a through e 0

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years 0

h Applied to 2019 distributable amount 0

1  Carryover from 2014 not applied (see instructions) _

1  Remainder. Subtract lines 3q. 3h. and 3i from 3f. 0 •

4  Distributions for 2019 from

Section D, line 7: $ 0

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years 0

b Applied to 2019 distributable amount 0

c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4. 0

5  Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2019, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 0

6  Remaining underdistributions for 2019. Subtract lines 3h

and 4b from tine 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions. 0

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3j

and 4c. 0
,

8  Breakdown of line 7:

a Excess from 2015 0

b Excess from 2016 0
•

c Excess from 2017 0

d Excess from 2018 0

e Excess from 2019 0

Sct)*dui« A (Fonn 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Fom 990 Of 990-EZ) 2019 Nevy Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association 83-0393316 Page 8

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part
III. line 12: Part IV. Section A, lines 1. 2. 3b, 3c. 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b. 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section

B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D. lines 2 and 3; Part IV. Section E, lines 1c, 2a. 2b.

3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V. Section D. lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

Part II Section B Line 12 OTHER INCOME: $880

Schodult A (Form 990 or 990^ 2019
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SCHEDULE 0

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Depsrtment of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities

For Organizations Exempt From income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527

> Complete if the organization is described beiow. > Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
► Go to www.lrs.Qov/Form990for instructions and the iatest information.

0MB No. 1545-0047

i(Q)19
open to Public

Inspection
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
• Section 501 (c)(3) organizations: Complete Parts i-A and B. Do not complete Part l-C.
• Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and C below. Do not complete Part 1-B.
• Section 527 organizations: Complete Part I-A only.

if the organization answered "Yes," on Form.990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
• Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (elecOon under section 501(h)): Complete Part ll-A. Do not complete Part ll-B.
• Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part ll-B. Do not complete Part ll-A.

if the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (see separate instructions) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35c
(Proxy Tax) (see separate instructions), then
• Section 501(c)(4). (5), or (6) organizations: Complete Part III.

Name of organization

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association
Part I-A

Employer identification numtwr

83-0393316

Complete If the organization Is exempt under section 501 (c) or Is a section 527 orgafiization.
1  Provide a description of the organization's direct and Indirect political campaign activities In Part IV. (see instructions for

definition of "political campaign activities")
2  Political campaign activity expenditures (see Instructions) ► $
3  Volunteer hours for political campaign activities (see Instructions)

Complete If the organization Is exempt under section S01(c)(3).Part l-B
1  Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 ► $
2  Enter the amount of any excise tax incumed by organization managers under section 4955. . . . ► $
3  If the organization Incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? Yes No
4a Was a correction made? F I Yes I I No
b If "Yes," describe In Part IV.

Part l-C Complete If the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section S01{c)(3).
1  Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function

activities ► $
2  Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section

527 exempt function activities ► $
3  Total exempt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,

line 17b ► $ 0.
4 Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? I I Yes F I No
5  Enter the names, addresses and employer Identification numt>er (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing

organization made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization's funds. Also enter
the amount of political contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such
as a separate segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC). If additional space Is needed, provide information In Part IV.

(a) Name (b) AddroM (c) EIN (d) Amount paid from
fllir>g organization's

funds. If nona, enter -0-.

(e) Amount of political
contributions received and

promptly and directly
delivered to a separate
political organization. If

none, enter -0-.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
HTA

Sch*du>« C (Form S90 or 990-EZ) 2019
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New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association
Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019

83-0393316

_Page^

Part ll-A Complete If the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election
under section 501(h)).

A Check ► n if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's
name, address, EIN, expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).

B Check ►Q if the filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply.
Limits on Lobbying Expenditures

(The term "expenditures" means amounts paid or incurred.)
(a) Filing

organization's totals
(b) AfflUatod
group totals

la Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grassroots lobbying). .
b ■ Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying). .
c  Total lobbying expenditures (add lines la and lb)
d Other exempt purpose expenditures
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1c and 1d)
f  Lobbying nontaxabte amount. Enter the amount from the following table in both

columns.

If the amount on line 1e, column (a) or (b) is: . The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1e.

Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 Dius 15% of the excess over $500,000.
Oer $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 ohjs 10% of the excess over $1,000,000.
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 dIus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000.
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000.

9 Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line If)
h  Subtract line 1g from line la. If zero or less, enter-0-
I  Subtract line If from line 1c. If zero or less, enter-0-.
J  If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1 h or line 1 i, did the organization file Form 4720 reporting

section 4911 tax for this year? Yes No
4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)

0

0

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal year
beginning in)

(a) 2016 (b)2017 (c)2018 (d)2019 (e) Total

2a Lobbying nontaxable amount
'

0 0 0

b  Lobbying celling amount
(150% of line 2a, column(e)) 0

c  Total lobbying expenditures
0 0 0

d  Grassroots nontaxable amount
0 0 0

e  Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of line 2d. column (e)) 0

f  Grassroots lobbying expenditures
0 0 0

SchMlul* C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association
Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019

Part ll-B

83-0393316

^Pege^

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768

Foreach "Yes"response on lines 1a through 11 below, provide in Part IV a detailed
description of the lobbying activity.

(a) (b)

Yes No Amount

1  During the year, did the Tiling organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state, or local
legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or
referendum, through the use of:

X

b Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 1i)? X

X

d Mailings to members, legislators, or the public?

e Publications, or published or broadcast statements?
f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes?

g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body?
h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means?

X

X

X

X 16,500

X

X

16,500

2a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501(c)(3)?

b  If 'Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912

c  If *Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912 . . .

d  If the filing orqanization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?

X t

-  , 1
UTIIiPi^ Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501c)(5), or section

501(c)(6).

1  Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members?
2  Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less?
3  Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political campaign activity expenditures from the prior year?.

Partlll-B

Yos No

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part lll-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No," OR (b) Part lll-A, line 3, is
answered "Yes."

Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members

Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not Include amounts of
political expenses for which the section S27(f) tax was paid).

Current year

Carryover from last year

Total

Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues
If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the

excess does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible
lobbying and political expenditure next year? . . • ,

Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see instructions)

2a

2b

2c

Part IV Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part l-A, line 1; Part l-B, line 4; Part l-C, line 5; Part ll-A (affiliated group list); Part ll-A, lines 1 and
2 (see instructions); and Part ll-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional information.

Schtdult C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Supplemental Information (continued)Part IV
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SCHEDULE 0

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Dopanmant o( tn* Tmsiry
inifHTWl Ravanua Sarvte

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ
Complete to provide Information for responses to specific questions on

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

> Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.

^ Go to w¥fw.lrs.gov/Form990 for the latest Information.

0MB No. 1S45-0047

m^9
Open to Public
Inspection

Name of (he organization

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Druo Service Providers Association

Employer Identification number

83-0393316

Form 990, Part III, Line 4d: Advocate, Fadlitate_and enhanc» _communjcation_wrth_f^^^

j50licy makers and the public to support members efforts to offer hig^h quajity substanw

j5revention, treatment and_recpjverY_supj50rt services /or citizens of

Form 990, Part Vl^ Section Bj Line 11 b: The_F[nan_ce_Commjttee_reviewsJhe 990_^fo^^

Form 990, Part Vl^ Section Bj LifieJ5a:_The_Executi_ve pirectpr's_comj»ns^^^^^

Form 990, Part VI Section C, Line 19: No jJocujpente ayajlabje to^e puW

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
KTA

Schtdul* O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) Page

Name o( the orgenizatlon

New Hampshire Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association

Employer identlflcation number

83-0393316

Schedule 0 (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)
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NH Providers Association Board of Directors Positions and Affiliations

Pos. Name Position Agency

1 John ludice President Addiction Recovery Services

2 Jason Gregoire Vice-President Individual Member

3 Michele Merritt Treasurer New Futures

4 Sue Gordon Secretary Greater Seacoast Community Health

5 LynneTowIe Member At-Large Horizons Counseling Center

7 Ryan Fowler Member At-Large HIV/HCV Resource Center

8 Jason Snook Member At-Large Aware Recovery Care

9 Greg Williams. Member At-Large North Country Health Consortium

10 Brian Mooney Member At-Large Makin' It Happen

11 Jessica Parnell Member At-Large Revive Recovery Center

12 Peter Burke Member At-Large Individual Member

13 Kristen McGuigan Pending Vote Families In Transition - New Horizons

14 Sheena Bice Pending Vote Individual Member
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KerranUigroux
♦ ♦♦

Professional Summarv

Experienced, innovative, and dedicated public health professional with over 19 years' experience as a Director. Known for
program and agency development, success, and sustainability with a commitment to personal and organizational integrity,
relationship building and community collaboration. Dynamic leader with an established reputation for providing strategic
direction of a wide range of outcomes-based public health programs.

Strategic Planning
Board Development
Needs Assessments

Fiscal Management and Budgeting
Organizational Management
Community Collaboration

Grant Writing and Management
Program Design and Development
Stakeholder Engagement

♦ Education
Master of Public Health

Bachelor of Science

Florida International University, Miami, FL
Gordon College, Wenham, MA

I# Experience

♦ Executive Director May, 2020 - Present
NH Alcohol & Other Drug Service Providers Association (NHPA), Concord, NH

■  Responsible for the overall strategic direction of the NHPA, staff, programs, and execution of its mission
•  Promote the activities and sustainability of the NHPA including sustainability plans, innovative program

design, membership outreach and education
•  Represent the NHPA Members in advancing substance use prevention, treatment and recovery through

public policy,-leadership, professional development, and quality member services
■  Develop, maintain and support the Board of Directors, serving on each Board Comrnittee
•  Oversee marketing and public relations
•  Responsible for grant research, submissions and oversight
•  Oversee sul>-contracts of the NHPA to ensure compliance and ongoing benefits to the NHPA
■  Collaborate with State and other partners to promote the NHPA's mission, programs and membership

priorities

♦ Director March, 2016-January, 2020
City of Lowell, Department of Health and Human Services, Lowell; MA

■  Exercised direct supervision/oversight of nine Department Managers and over 200 full-time, part-time and
seasonal employees

•  Oversaw planning, operations, human resource functions, evaluation, fiscal and budget management of the
Health and Human Services Department which consisted of the Health Department, Senior Center/Council on
Aging, Recreation, Veterans Administration and the Public Library

"  Managed planning and operations of the Health Department including Substance Use and Prevention,
Communify Health, Clinic Services for Adult Immunizations, Infectious Diseases, Tuberculosis Infection and
Control, Tobacco Prevention and Control, School Nursing. Community Outreach, Mass in Motion, Vital
Statistics, Licensing and Permitting and Emergency Preparedness and Response

"  Developed and managed the over 6 million dollars departmental budget, including grant funds. Responsible
for State and Federal financial and programmatic reporting

■  Assumed control and oversight of the multi-agency Community Opioid Outreach Program which consisted of
Outreach Staff from the City of Lowell Health, Fire and Police Departments, Lowell House, Inc. and Trinity
EMS

•  Oversaw the preparation and submittal of grant applications and obtained local private. State and Federal
grarit funding for various public health programs including multiple Substance Use and Prevention grants.
School Health, Tobacco Prevention and Control. Chronic Disease Prevention and Education, and
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Tuberculosis Prevention and Education grants
Created two new departments including securing grant and municipal funding as well as creating new
positions: Substance Use and Prevention and Health Education and Outreach
New Grants/Programs created: Spacers/Asthma; Health & Wellness (Walking Paths, Pickleball Courts,
Exercise Equipment); 'Healthy Lowell" Community Cable Series; Employee and Seniors' Health Fair; Sun
Safety; Syringe Collection and Education Program; Youth Vision Equity Project; Syringe Take-back/Kiosk
collaboration with Massachusetts Department of Public Health (MDPH)
Participated in the City Manager's Task Force on Homelessness and Sustainable Housing as well as the
Homelessness Crisis Response Committee
Collaborated with Massachusetts Department of Public Health and community stakeholders on the Opioid
Crisis, Measles and HIV outbreaks
Developed an Employee Needle Stick education program for all city employees
Oversaw the Request for Proposal and Bid Selection for multiple projects including the Emergency Medical
Services Ambulance contract, the City of Lowell Council on Aging Food Services and the Lowell Health
Department's relocation and construction of a new health clinic
Primary point of contact for media inquiries, press releases and on-camera interviews for Health and Human
Services

Responsible for human resource management of all employees within the Health and Human Services
Department including creating new positions and job descriptions, recruitment, inten/iewing, on-boarding,
evaluation, progressive discipline and terminations
Led Health Department personnel in emergency preparedness and response functions including appropriate
trainings, drills and exercises, the creation of NIMS-compliant planning documents, and response to actual
emergency events
Collaborated with institutions of higher leaming to provide meaningful and useful internships and learning
opportunities for masters-level and bachelors-level students; Collaborated with Tufts Medical Center,
University of Massachusetts Lowell and Trinity EMS to publish journal articles, infographics, flyers and media
alerts regarding the Opioid Crisis and the intersections of public health, academia and Emergency Medical
Services

■  Oversaw innovative collaboration with Middlesex Community College Graphic Design program to develop
new branding for the Lowell Health Department

♦Director June, 2008 - February, 2016
City of Nashua. Division of Public Health and Community Services. Nashua, NH

■  Exercised daily supervision/oversight of three department managers and over thirty full-time, part-time and
per diem employees including: Welfare; Community Health; Environmental Health; Public Health Clinic
Services for Adult and Child Immunizations, Sexually Transmitted Disease prevention and control.
Tuberculosis prevention and control. Childhood Lead Poisoning and Prevention and Communicable Disease
surveillance and control; Substance Misuse Program; Epidemiology; Emergency Preparedness; Health
Education and Outreach; Community Health Improvement Planning and Implementation of health initiatives;
Public Health Accreditation; CDC Public Health Associate Program, Tobacco Prevention and Control; and the
Healthy Homes program

•  Provided planning, policy and operational direction to the Mayor, Board of Aldermen and the Board of Health
■  Oversaw the successful planning, application and submission process for the first Public Health Department

Accreditation obtained in New Hampshire
"  Developed, prepared, presented, monitored, forecasted, and managed the 3.2 million divisional budget

including grant funds. Responsible for State and Federal financial and programmatic reporting
■  Oversaw the Public Health Advisory Council, a 26+ organizational collaborative of health and human service

agencies, which guided the Community Health Assessment and Community Health Improvement Plan for the
City and the Greater Nashua Public Health Region

•  Oversaw the Request for Proposal and Bid selection process for the City's Emergency Medical Ambulance
Services

•  Responsible for the oversight of the City's contracts with the Greater Nashua Mental Health Center's
Supervised Visitation Center, Ambulance services by American Medical Response, Inc. (AMR) and the
Greater Nashua Humane Society

•  Responsible for all Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response activities including plan
development, development and execution of exercises and drills, and responses to actual public health
emergencies and incidents including HI N1, Ebola, Gl Anthrax, multiple white powder events and extreme
temperature events

"  Prepared and submitted grant funding proposals to private foundations, the State Department of Health and
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Human Services, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and the Office of Violence On Women
•  Collaborated with multiple City Departments to develop and manage a summer recreation bus route program

for inner-city children

^Director July, 2005 — June, 2008
Bureau of Public Health, Town of Derry, NH

■  Facilitated the first integration of a NH DHHS Public Health Network grant into a Municipal Govemment in
order to create the first Health Department for the Town of Derry, NH

■  Obtained and maintained multiple, concurrent Stale and private funder grants to increase the scope and
capacity of the growing department

■  Established departmental policies and procedures, created public health programs and staffing positions
"  Conducted and trained Health Inspectors in housing, health care and food establishment inspections

♦Public Health Network Coordinator November, 2003 - June, 2008
Greater Derry Area Health and Safety Council, Derry, NH

■  Oversaw the multi-disciplinary Public Health Network which included Governmental, Medical and Social
Service Agencies from nine communities

•  Facilitated the implementation of the Public Health Improvement Plan process within the network communities
•  Provided and conducted various training opportunities and emergency exercises
■  Planned, conducted and evaluated public meetings and presentations to advise stakeholders, and residents

on public health issues
"  Developed press releases, public service announcements, and conducted media interviews

♦Director November, 2003 - December, 2008
Medical Reserve Corps, Derry, NH Unit

•  Oversaw daily programmatic operations for the Derry Unit including volunteer mobilization during Hurricane
Katrina. the 2006 "Mothers' Day Floods'

■  Served on the National MRC Core Competencies workgroup to develop Policies and Procedures for
Volunteer Management and Training

•  Planned, implemented and evaluated volunteer training opportunities for over 200 MRC volunteers
■  Recruited over 200 medical and other professionals for the Greater Derry MRC
•  Facilitated inter-agency cooperation with MRC units throughout the Northeast Region

♦Health Promotion Advisor April, 1999-June, 2001
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Concord, NH

■  Served as the Community Liaison with a team of a Health Analyst and Epidemiologist to complete Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention/Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry Health Assessments
and Health Consultations on air sampling and ground water sampling results for NH Superfund sites

■  Plan, develop, implement and evaluate public health education programs and
materials for the communities and citizens of New Hampshire

♦Program Coordinator February, 1998 - March, 1999
Broward County Breast and Cervical Cancer Initiative, Fort Lauderdale, FL

•  Managed the CDC-funded Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program Grant
•  Established medical service contracts, monitored compliance and provided coordination of testing and

treatment services for women who tested positive for breast or cervical cancer

♦Senior Health Educator June, 1997 - February, 1998
Broward County Health Department. Fort Lauderdale, FL
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"  Developed, conducted, and evaluated presentation topics such as sexuajly transmitted diseases,
tuberculosis and hepatitis. Targeted diverse populations including adolescents, displaced youth, individuals

.  with substance use disorder including adolescents, incarcerates and seniors

♦Rural Fisheries Volunteer 1990 -1992
United States Peace Corps, Gabon, Central Africa

"  Trained farmers from 5 villages in aquaculture development, construction and maintenance of fish ponds
■  All training and woi1< was conducted in French <
"  Assisted medical staff from the local hospital with small group presentations on various topics; matemal and

child health, contraception, oral re-hydration

[♦Boards, Committees and Associations 2010-2020 . I

NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, R^overy Task Force, 2020 - present
NH DHHS, Healthcare Workforce Group, 2020 - present
NH DHHS State Health Assessment and State Health Improvement Plan Advisory Group, 2020 - present
NH DHHS SHA/SHIP - Subcommittee on Community Engagement. 2020 - present
NH DHHS Insurance Department Mental Health and Addiction Services Advisory Committee, 2020 - present
New Hampshire Telehealth Alliance, 2020 - present
National Council for Behavioral Health, 2020 - present
National Council for Behavioral Health, Addictions Committee, 2020 - present
National Council for Behavioral Health, Policy Committee, 2020 - present
Greater Lowell Health Alliance, Board Memljer 2016 -2020
Lowell Telecommunications Center, Board Member/Board Development Committee Chair 2016 - 2020
Lowell City Manager's Task Force on Homelessness and Sustainable Housing, 2019
Homelessness Crisis Response Committee, 2019
Massachusetts Largest Communities Advisory Group, 2017 - 2020
Mayor's Opiate Epidemic Crisis Task Force, 2016 - 2020
District Attorney's Opiate Overdose Task Force, 2016 - 2020
Greater Lowell Hospital and Medical Coordinating Committee. 2016-2020
Greater Lowell Public Health Committee, 2016 - 2020
Massachusetts Opioid Abuse and Prevention Committee, 2016 - 2020
Lowell Syringe Services Program Advisory Board, 2017 - 2019
Nutfield 300"^ Anniversary Gala Chair, 2018-2019
American Public Health Association, Member 2003 - Present
Massachusetts Health Officers Association, Member 2016 - Present
National Association of City and County Health Officials, Member 2003 • Present
Greater Derry Arts Council,. Board Trustee 2017 - Present, Secretary, Chair of Nutfield SOO''^ Gala Committee
New Hampshire Public Health Association, Board Member 2016 - 2018
Kids Coop Theatre, Inc, Board Member 2016-2018
Greater Nashua YMCA, Board Member 2014 - 2016
Rivier University Public Health Advisory Board Member 2014 - 2016
City of Nashua, Mayor's Cabinet, 2008 - January 2016
Nashua Ambulance Advisory Committee, Co-Chair 2008 - January 2016
Greater Nashua Supervised Visitation Center, Advisory Committee 2010 - January 2016
Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Board Member 2012 - 2016
NH Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health Improvement Services Council
2008-2016
NH Department of Health and Human Services, Preventive Health & Health Services Block Grant Advisory
Committee 2008 - 2014
Nashua Child Care Advisory Commission, 2011-2013
Derry Community Alliance for Teen Safety, Board Member 2006 - 2011
Greater Derry Medical Reserve Corps, Steering Committee January 2009 - 2010
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!♦ Awards. Publications and Collaborations

•  Recognized as one of the 2016 Greater Nashua's 25 Extraordinary Women

•  Charles Alpren, Erica L. Dawson, Betsey John, Kevin Cranston, et al. 2020;
Qpioid Use Fuelina HIV Transmission in an Urban Setting: An Outbreak of HIV Infection Among People Who

Inject Drugs—Massachusetts. 2015-2018: American Journal of Public Health 110, 37_44. '

•  Rudolph FedrizzI, MD: Ten Steps for Improving Blood Pressure Control in New Hampshire: A Practical Guide for
Clinicians and Community Partners.

[♦Languages v i

English
French
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Kiri Stroh

SKILLS

Experience working with and on a Board of Directors: high-level strategic planning, development, and operations;
Strong financial literacy and budgetary skills;
Proficient skills in Microsoft Office Suite; Association Management Software, Member and Donor Database
Software, QuickBooks Intuit, Constant Contact, G Suite, additional cloud-based platforms;
Quality public speaking, writing, and presentational skills;
Excellent interpersonal and customer service skills;
Resourceful and self-motivated, ability to work both collaboratively and independently;
Rigorous self-assessor;
Excellent problem-solving, decision-making, organizational, and time management skills;
Passionate about nonprofit operations and development, collaboration, and community wellness; and
Committed to excellence.

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE

NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association, Concord, NH 2013 - Present

Operations Director, October 2011 - Current

•  Oversees organizational strategy and programming including membership arid member benefits, operational
systems, legal documentation and reporting, data and record-keeping, office management functions, internal and
external communications, and grant deliverables.

•  Implements technological advancements and processes to streamline operations and enhance membership
engagement. Responsible for implementing an organization-wide AMS, maintains organizational database,
website, contact center, and event management modules.

•  Oversees bookkeeping processes. Leads strategy in the budgeting and financial planning process.
•  Leads all aspects of programming and projects including: event planning and contracting; sponsorships and exhibit

sales; marketing & communication; membership benefits array; and volunteer management.
•  Monitors and improves existing systems, policies, and procedures to increase efficiency, reduce costs, build

capacity, and enhance mission fulfillment;
•  Trains and orients all new staff members;

•  Works closely with the Board of Directors: participates in strategic planning, board development, and committees;
•  Continues to perform all duties listed under Mernbership Development position.

Membership Development Director, March 2013 - October 2017

•  Responsible for goals surrounding membership including growth and diversification, engagement, and retention as
well as ensuring a dynamic and valuable benefits array. Builds relationships arid collaborates with members,
stakeholders, and partners in effort to fulfill the organization's mission.

•  Increases relevance and presence of the organiiation in the Behavioral Health field by identifying opportunities for
collaboration; develops and implements communication and marketing strategies.

•  Develops and implements income-diversifying streams of revenue and initiatives to help ensure sustainability of
the organization, while meeting member needs. Coordinates and manages all exhibitor and sponsor functions; and
is responsible for securing over $400,000 in sponsorship support for events to date.

Garrison City Early Childhood Center, Dover, NH 2007-2012

Primary Lead Teacher
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•  Developed curriculum and learning objectives that created dynamic and developmentally appropriate learning
opportunities for children age 0-5 years. Maintained an organized a developmentally appropriate classroom.

•  Exercised supervision by leading a team of two, through planning and coordinating implementation of curriculum
with co-teachers and evaluating their performance during annual reviews.

•  Communicated thoughtfully with families and care-givers with the goal of enhancing engagement and fostering
collaborative and authentic relationships.

•  Monitored and documented children's progress, behavior, and well-being.

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH 2020
Bachelor of Science, Business Administration | Honors: Graduated Summa Cum Laude
Course hi^lights: Operations Management, Accounting for Nonprofits, Project Management, Strategic Management and
Policy, Business Systems Analysis & Design

Hesser College, Portsmouth, NH 2008
Associates of Science, Early Childhood Education | Honors: Graduated Summa Cum Laude, President's List throughout
enrollment

Course highlights: Principles of Management

VOLUNTEER AND PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

The Falls Chamber of Commerce, 2020 - Present
Treasurer, Chair of Finance Committee, Vice-Chair of Executive Committee, Member of Ambassador Committee

New England Society of Association Executives, 2015 - present,
Membership Value Committee member

NH Behavioral Health Summit Planning Committee, 2017 - present
De Facto Chair

South Berwick Central Elementary School PTO, 2016 - present
T reasurer

Member of the American Society of Association Executives, 2015 - 2020

I

Member of the Society for Human Resource Management, 2019 - 2020

Facilitator of the Manchester Substance Use Disorder Collaborative, 2014 - 2016
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NH Providers Association

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Kerran Vieroux Executive Director $80,000 5 $4,000

Kiri Stroh Operations Manager $50,000 20 $10,000


